MAYOR Brian West

CITY COUNCIL Monty Parks Mayor pro tem Bill Garbett Spec Hosti Tony Ploughe Nick Sears Kathryn Williams



CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND

INTERIM CITY MANAGER Michelle Owens

> **CLERK OF COUNCIL** Jan LeViner

CITY ATTORNEY Edward M. Hughes Tracy O'Connell

A G E N D A REGULAR MEETING OF TYBEE ISLAND CITY COUNCIL August 22, 2024 at 6:30 PM

Please silence all cell phones during Council Meetings

Opening Ceremonies Call to Order Invocation Pledge of Allegiance

Announcements

Recognitions and Proclamations

1. Cassidi Kendrick: TIMA No Smoking Design Contest Winners

Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda

<u>Consideration of the approval of the minutes of the meetings of the Tybee island City Council</u> <u>2.</u> Minutes, City Council Meeting, July 25, 2024

City Manager Discussion and Action Items

Invited Guest and Staff Reports. Please limit to 10 minutes.

3. Ben McKay, GSU, Resident Sentiment Study by Georgia State University

If there is anyone wishing to speak to anything on the agenda, please approached the podium. Please limit your comments to 5 minutes.

Consideration of Approval of Consent Agenda

Consideration of Local Requests & Applications – Funding, Special Events, Alcohol License

4. Tybee Post Theater Music Festival special event permit: Alcohol license for liquor November 7-9, 2024 Tybee Post Theater is currently a beer and wine license holder

Consideration of Bids, Contracts, Agreements and Expenditures

5. Contract: First Data Company to assist in on-line reservations for facilities

P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 (866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 www.cityoftybee.org



Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments

6. Michelle Owens: 912 Mortar Avenue: Buttimer request for STR Permit

Executive Session

Discuss litigation, personnel and real estate

Possible vote on litigation, personnel and real estate discussed in executive session

Adjournment

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact Jan LeViner at 912.472.5080 promptly to allow the City to make reasonable accommodations for those persons.

***PLEASE NOTE:** Citizens wishing to speak on items listed on the agenda, other than public hearings, should do so during the citizens to be heard section. Citizens wishing to place items on the council meeting agenda must submit an agenda request form to the City Clerk's office by Thursday at 5:00PM prior to the next scheduled meeting. Agenda request forms are available outside the Clerk's office at City Hall and at <u>www.cityoftybee.org</u>.

THE VISION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND

"is to make Tybee Island the premier beach community in which to live, work, and play."

THE MISSION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND

"is to provide a safe, secure and sustainable environment by delivering superior services through responsible planning, preservation of our natural and historic resources, and partnership with our community to ensure economic opportunity, a vibrant quality of life, and a thriving future."



File Attachments for Item:

2. Minutes, City Council Meeting, July 25, 2024

City Council Minutes, July 25, 2024

Mayor West called the meeting to order at 6:30PM, July 25, 2024. Those in attendance were Nick Sears, Monty Parks, Spec Hosti, Kathryn Williams (via Zoom), Tony Ploughe and Bill Garbett. Also attending were Michelle Owens, Interim City Manager; Bubba Hughes, City Attorney, Tracy O'Connell, City Attorney; and Lisa Schaaf, Zoning. Jan LeViner was on vacation.

Opening Ceremonies

Call to Order Invocation: Rev. Sue Jackson, Trinity Methodist Church Pledge of Allegiance

Monty Parks made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session to discuss real estate. **Nick Sears** seconded. Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0.

Monty Parks made a motion to return to regular session. **Tony Ploughe** seconded. Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0.

Mayor West called the meeting to order.

Mayor West read a tribute to past council member and beloved resident **Mallory Pearce.** Mayor West stated that Mallory was many things: friend, husband, father, grandfather, esteemed council member, an environmentalist, professor and author. He served three (3) terms as a City Council member and was instrumental in writing the tree ordinance and defining zoning to ensure quality of life for the residents. He will also be remembered for his role as Abraham Lincoln and reading the Emancipation Proclamation at every Juneteenth Celebration. He will be greatly missed. Kathryn Williams also expressed her appreciation to Mr. Pearce as she served with him on the City Council.

Mayor West introduced **Patricia Sinel** who joined the Staff as the new Community Development Coordinator. Ms. Sinel is a native of Colorado and a former Marine Engineer for the US Navy. She has extensive experience in planning and community development, serving in positions across the country. Ms. Sinel also holds many certifications, which include Flood Plan Manager and has twenty years plus experience in GIS Mapping Systems and we look forward to working with her. Ms. Sinel stated she is excited to be here and appreciative of the welcome she has received.

Recognitions and Proclamations

Jaime Spear approached to recognize **Reece Cooke**, Parking Services, as the Employee of the Quarter. Mayor West thanked Mr. Cooke.

Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda

- Minutes, City Council Meeting, July 11, 2024
- Windcave Agreement for Payment Processing
- Fourth Amendment to Water Tower Attachment Option and Lease Agreement

Reports from Boards and Committees. Please limit your reports to 10 minutes.

Holly Grell-Lawe approached Mayor and Council to give an **HPC Update.** Ms. Grell-Lawe stated she is representing the Historic Preservation Commission and then gave a Year in Review presentation to include Initiative and Projects. She stated the Georgia Department of Community

Affairs recognized Tybee Island as one of eight municipalities in Georgia that has been awarded Federal Historic Preservation Grant Funds. She continued to give highlights of the Art Center, Community Historical Signage and Tybee Island Elevation Design Guidelines for Historic Buildings. Mr. Garbett thanked Ms. Grell-Lawe for everything she has done. Mayor West thanked Ms. Grell-Lawe for her presentation and all the work she does for the Commission.

Alan Robertson approached Mayor and Council to give a presentation on the South-beach Sandbar Public Safety. Mr. Robertson gave a presentation showing the longshore current that flows north to south and how it releases energy. He also showed Google Earth slides depicting the shoreline at low and high tides. Mr. Hosti stated people are not aware of the swiftness of the tides and could drown while on the sandbar trying to get back to shore. Mr. Robertson recommended signage to the entrances of the south-end which would be 19th Street, Chatham and Inlet positioned so beachgoers would have to walk by the signs which might say "danger or restricted access". Ms. Owens stated the City has refurbished the signage and ordered new signage to alert beachgoers to the tides. Mr. Hosti recommended a staff member be located near or on the sandbar to ensure beachgoers are aware of the danger. Sqt. Hattrick approached Mayor and Council. Sqt. Hattrick stated there is temporary signage on the beach warning everyone of the danger of the currents. He stated we have a good relationship with DNR and he will work with them moving forward. Mr. Ploughe asked Sqt. Hattrick to discuss staffing for the south-end sandbar. Sqt. Hattrick stated as to his staff, they work seven (7) days a week yearround. Staff also are at the sandbar daily. Ms. Owens stated the sandbar is a priority for the lifequards also. Different options were discussed such as alerting beach goers to the incoming tides. Mr. Parks recommended shutting down that portion of the beach for safety reasons. Mayor West thanked Mr. Robertson.

Citizens to be Heard: Please limit comments to 4 minutes.

Susan Estroff approached Mayor and Council to speak to **Sound Barrier Mat for Gas Golf Carts.** Ms. Estroff spoke to the increase of noise pollution on the Island due to gas golf carts. She offered research that she has done to include a sound barrier mat that is placed inside the engine compartment. Another option being a muffler silence goer and lastly addressing the golf cart traffic on Jones Avenue. Mayor West thanked Ms. Estroff.

Charlen Smith approached Mayor and Council. Ms. Smith discussed safety precautions for the sandbar. She presented five (5) ways to keep beachgoers safe and to alert them of the tides. Mayor West thanked Ms. Smith.

Sandy Stoeffler approached Mayor and Council. Ms. Stoeffler stated she would like to bring education and awareness around water safety around the Island and she is scheduled to make a presentation at an upcoming workshop. Mayor West thanked Ms. Stoeffler for her work and comments.

Monty Parks made a motion to approve the consent agenda to include the amended minutes. **Tony Ploughe** seconded. Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0.

Consideration of Bids, Contracts, Agreements and Expenditures

Agreement as to Terms of Appointment for City Manager, City of Tybee Island. Mayor West expressed his appreciation to Ms. Owens and no matter the outcome of the vote, he will work with whomever Council votes to appoint as the new City Manager. He would also like to acknowledge that Ms. Owens has done a really great job and wanted to thank her for the job she has done. He then gave a brief employment history of Ms. Owens while at the City of Tybee Island to include all her achievements. Mayor West again thanked Ms. Owens for her dedication to the City and her exemplary work on behalf of the City for the past year and a half working day and night fulfilling multiple roles. He commended her for the professionalism and attitude. **Bill** **Garbett** made a motion to approve the contract with Mr. Bell. **Monty Parks** seconded. **Discussion: Mr. Hosti** stated he was disappointed in the decision City Council has made as he thinks Ms. Owens has done a great job and he does not understand how she was passed up with the amount of experience she has. She has been a great ambassador to the City, the citizens and staff. Voting in favor were Nick Sears, Monty Parks, Kathryn Willliams, Tony Ploughe and Bill Garbett. Voting against was Spec Hosti. Motion to approve, 5-1. **Discussion: Ms. Owens** thanked Mayor and Council for putting their trust in her and thanked staff and citizens. She stated that she will work to ease the transition of the new City Manager.

Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments

Bubba Hughes gave an update on the MSC roof and solar panels. Mr. Hughes stated the Marine Science Center would like to put panels on the building which the City owns. There has been discussion about the procurement process and as he understands, they are fully behind complying with the City's procurement policy and with a Request for Proposal. Mayor and Council now need to decide if they would like to move forward. Mr. Hughes recommended starting over to include prequalifying potential contractors. Mr. Hosti shared his concerns with the warranty of the roof if these panels are installed. It was the will of Council to bring the Site Plan back b

Monty Parks made a motion to adjourn. **Spec Hosti** seconded. Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0.

Meeting was adjourned at 7:30 PM.

Janet LeViner, MMC Clerk of Council

File Attachments for Item:

4. Tybee Post Theater Music Festival special event permit: Alcohol license for liquor November 7-9, 2024

Tybee Post Theater is currently a beer and wine license holder

MAYOR Brian West

CITY COUNCIL Monty Parks, Mayor Pro Tem Bill Garbett Michael "Spec" Hosti **Tony Ploughe** Nick Sears Kathryn Williams



INTERIM CITY MANAGER Michelle Owens

CLERK OF COUNCIL. Janet LeViner

CITY ATTORNEY Edward M. Hughes

Council Meeting Date for Request: _ August 22, 2024

Item: <u>Alcohol License Request: Special Event Liquor (Business is already a wine and beer license holder)</u>

Tybee Post Theater Music Festival, 10 Van Horne Ave

November 7, November 8 and November 9, 2024

Explanation: Special Event: Add liquor permit for Music Festival dates, 11/7-11/9, 2024

(Tybee Post Theater is currently a beer and wine license holder)

Budget Line Item Number (if applicable): N/A

Paper Work: X Attached*

Audio/Video Presentation**

- × Electronic submissions are requested but not required. Please email to jleviner@cityoftybee.org.
- Audio/video presentations must be submitted to the IT department at City Hall ** by 4:00PM on the Thursday prior to the scheduled meeting.

Submitted by: Sharon S. Shaver

Phone / Email: 472-5072 / sshaver@cityoftybee.gov

Comments:

Date given to Clerk of Council July 25, 2024

P.O. Box 2749 - 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 (866) 786-4573 - FAX (866) 786-5737 www.cityoftybee.org



CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND BUSINESS AND ALCOHOL LICENSE APPLICATION



Application is hereby made for a license to do business within the City of Tybee Island as a dealer in alcoholic beverages as indicated below:

	FEE	CHECK	Notice: The applicant
Retail Beer/Wine – Package Sales Only, Consumption on Premises Prohibited	1110.		for a license shall be a citizen of the United
Retail Beer/Wine – Sale by Drink for Consumption on Premises Only	945.		States, a resident of
Retail Liquor – Sale by Package Only, Consumption on Premises Prohibited	1410.		Chatham County, and
Retail Liquor – Sale by Drink for Consumption on Premises Only	1950.		owner of the business or
Retail Liquor – Sale by Package & Drink both in One Building under One Ownership Sunday Sales – Sale by Drink for Consumption on Premises Only	2,000		if a corporation,
Sunday Sales – Sale by Drink for Consumption on Premises Only Sunday Sales – Package Sales Only	50		partnership or other
Wholesale Beer	765		legal entity is the owner,
Wholesale Liguor	1,500		a substantial and major stockholder or the
Wholesale Wine	150		applicant may be the
Distiller, Brewer, or Manufacturer of Alcoholic Beverages	300		manager of the business
Special Event – Public or Private Property - Beer, Wine (no current license) per event	50		charged with the regular
Special Event – Public or Private Property - Beer, Wine (no current license) 3 days	100		operation of said
Special Event – Public or Private Property - Beer, Wine (holding current license) per event	10		business on the
1) 11 11 11 1. 11 1. 11 1, 1. 1 + 1 qual		V	premises for which the
			license is issued.
Business Name Friday La Rent H TI Rent			
ITTERAS OF THE TYPER TOST THEATE	er		
Business Location 10 Van Horne Ave.			
Mailing Address PU Box 2356			
10 000 3320			
Phone 9124724790 Email evan	etybee	post-H	neater.org
Federal ID#: 58 · 2647732 Sales Tax ID:	NAICS Cod		5
Business Type(Circle One): Sole Proprietor Partnership Corporation(State)Date:_Date:_Dat	LLC Non	-Profit)	Other:
	(
APE: Names and Home Addresses of Owners, Partners or Corporate Officers with T	Ten Percent (1 0%	Interest	in Business
Names (attach additional pages if necessary) Date of Birth Home Addresses	City, State, 2	· .	Social Security #
Evan Goetz 116 A Kope In.	Sav 314	05	-
Tracy Forman 14 Decrowood Rd	Sav 314	0	
in why to that it is the intervolution by			
Ecouvity Assistance Plan		• •	Th
Ecouvity Assistance Plan	ure requi	red t	TD anyone
Ecouvity Assistance Plan	ve requi	red t	to ID anyone
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? <u>Employees a</u> Of a uestionable age.	urc requi	ved t	TD anyone
Ecouvity Assistance Plan	<u>wc rcqui</u> ow often / Seasona	il dates?	TD anyone
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? <u>Employces a</u> <u>Of guestonable</u> age. Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: If so, how many?Ho	ow often / Seasona	I dates?	
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? <u>Employees a</u> Of a uestionable age.	ow often / Seasona	I dates?	
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? <u>Employees a</u> <u>Of QUESTONABLE</u> <u>AGE</u> . Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: If so, how many?Ho Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? <u>45</u> Number: <u>2-3</u> Frequer	ow often / Seasona	I dates?	
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? <u>Employces a</u> <u>Of QUESTONABLE</u> AGE. Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: If so, how many?Ho	ow often / Seasona	I dates?	
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? <u>Employees a</u> <u>Of QUESTONABLE</u> <u>AGE</u> . Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: If so, how many?Ho Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? <u>45</u> Number: <u>2-3</u> Frequer	ow often / Seasona	I dates?	
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? <u>Employces a</u> <u>Of guestonable</u> age. Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: <u>If so, how many?</u> Ho Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? <u>A</u> Number: <u>2-3</u> Frequer <u>Music</u> Festivals	ncy?a	urin.	g.our
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? <u>Employces a</u> <u>Of guestonable</u> age. Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: <u>If so, how many?</u> Ho Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? <u>A</u> Number: <u>2-3</u> Frequer <u>Music</u> Festivals	ncy?	rving or	g. our
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? <u>Employees a</u> <u>Of guestionable</u> age. Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: If so, how many?Ho Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? <u>US</u> Number: <u>2-3</u> Frequer <u>Music Festivals</u> Per City Ordinance (6-2021) All licensees are required to have proof of their employeer certificates of completion from an alcohol server training pro-	loyees, those se	rving or j	ع الله pouring alcohol, current ee.
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? Employees a <u>Of</u> <u>QUESTONABLE</u> <u>AGE</u> . Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: If so, how many?Ho Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? <u>IS</u> Number: <u>2-3</u> Frequer <u>MUSIC</u> <u>FESTIVALS</u> Per City Ordinance (6-2021) All licensees are required to have proof of their employer certificates of completion from an alcohol server training pro- Is the building capacity notice clearly posted? Where? <u>Les</u> in the Conces	loyees, those se	rving or j	ع الله pouring alcohol, current ee.
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? <u>Employees a</u> <u>Of guestionable</u> age. Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: If so, how many?Ho Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? <u>US</u> Number: <u>2-3</u> Frequer <u>Music Festivals</u> Per City Ordinance (6-2021) All licensees are required to have proof of their employeer certificates of completion from an alcohol server training pro-	loyees, those se	rving or j	ع الله pouring alcohol, current ee.
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? Employees a Of QUESTONABLE AGE. Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: If so, how many?Ho Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? A number: 2-3 Frequer MUSIC FESTIVALS Per City Ordinance (6-2021) All licensees are required to have proof of their employeer Certificates of completion from an alcohol server training pro Is the building capacity notice clearly posted? Where? Yes in the Conces How is occupancy load enforced? By ticket Sales	loyees, those se ogram on file wi	rving or j th license	g. Dur pouring alcohoi, current ee. Window
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? Employees a Of QUESTONABLE AGE. Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: If so, how many?Ho Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? Les Number: 2-3 Frequer MUSIC Festivals Per City Ordinance (6-2021) All licensees are required to have proof of their employeer Certificates of completion from an alcohol server training pro- Is the building capacity notice clearly posted? Where? Les in the Conces	loyees, those se ogram on file wi ssions pic	rving or j th license that is an	g. Dur pouring alcohol, current ee. Window assembly occupancy
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? Employees a Of QUESTONABLE AGE. Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: If so, how many?Ho Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? A Number: 2-3 Frequer MUSIC FESTIVALS Per City Ordinance (6-2021) All licensees are required to have proof of their employeer certificates of completion from an alcohol server training pro Is the building capacity notice clearly posted? Where? A MC Conces How is occupancy load enforced? By Hicket Sales international Fire Code 2018 ed: [BE] 1004.9 Posting of occupant load. Every shall have the occupant load of the room or space posted in a conspicuous place, manual second server for the sales of the second server the sales of the second server the second	loyees, those se ogram on file wi ssions pic	rving or j th license that is an t or exit d	g. Dur pouring alcohoi, current ee. Wirdow assembly occupancy access doorway from th
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? <u>Employces a</u> <u>A</u> <u>G</u> <u>Uestonable</u> <u>age</u> . Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: <u>If so, how many?</u> Ho Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? <u>A</u> Number: <u>2-3</u> Frequer <u>Music</u> <u>Festivals</u> Per City Ordinance (6-2021) All licensees are required to have proof of their emplorer training pro- Certificates of completion from an alcohol server training pro- Is the building capacity notice clearly posted? Where? <u>A</u> <u>Music</u> <u>Sales</u> nternational Fire Code 2018 ed: [BE] 1004.9 Posting of occupant load. Every thall have the <i>occupant load</i> of the room or space posted in a conspicuous place, moom or space, for the intended configurations. Posted signs shall be of an <i>approve</i>	loyees, those se ogram on file wi ssions pic	rving or j th license that is an t or exit d	g. Dur pouring alcohoi, current ee. Wirdow assembly occupancy access doorway from th
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? <u>Employces a</u> <u>A</u> <u>G</u> <u>Uestonable</u> <u>age</u> . Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: <u>If so, how many?</u> Ho Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? <u>A</u> Number: <u>2-3</u> Frequer <u>Music</u> <u>Festivals</u> Per City Ordinance (6-2021) All licensees are required to have proof of their emplorer training pro- Certificates of completion from an alcohol server training pro- Is the building capacity notice clearly posted? Where? <u>A</u> <u>Music</u> <u>Sales</u> nternational Fire Code 2018 ed: [BE] 1004.9 Posting of occupant load. Every thall have the <i>occupant load</i> of the room or space posted in a conspicuous place, moom or space, for the intended configurations. Posted signs shall be of an <i>approve</i>	loyees, those se ogram on file wi ssions pic	rving or j th license that is an t or exit d	g. Dur pouring alcohoi, current ee. Window assembly occupancy access doorway from th
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? <u>Employees a</u> <u>Of</u> <u>Questionable</u> <u>age</u> . Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: <u>If</u> so, how many? <u>Ho</u> Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? <u>Assistance Plane</u> <u>Music</u> <u>Festivals</u> Per City Ordinance (6-2021) All licensees are required to have proof of their emplorer training pro- certificates of completion from an alcohol server training pro- Is the building capacity notice clearly posted? Where? <u>Assistance</u> How is occupancy load enforced? <u>By</u> <u>Hicket</u> <u>Sales</u> International Fire Code 2018 ed: [BE] 1004.9 Posting of occupant load. Every thall have the <i>occupant load</i> of the room or space posted in a conspicuous place, moom or space, for the intended configurations. Posted signs shall be of an <i>approve</i> maintained by the owner or the owner's authorized agent.	how often / Seasona hcy? $Qaly$ loyees, those se ogram on file with SS(an s pic) room or space lear the main <i>exi</i> ed legible perma	rving or j th license that is an t or exit a nent desi	g. Dur pouring alcohoi, current ee. Wirdow assembly occupancy access doorway from th gn and shall be
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? Employees a <u>A</u> <u>G</u> <u>UESTONABLE</u> <u>AGE</u> . Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: If so, how many?Ho Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? <u>ES</u> Number: <u>2-3</u> Frequer <u>MUSIC</u> <u>FESTVALS</u> Per City Ordinance (6-2021) All licensees are required to have proof of their employer certificates of completion from an alcohol server training pro- Is the building capacity notice clearly posted? Where? <u>Les in the Conces</u> How is occupancy load enforced? <u>By Hicket Sales</u> nternational Fire Code 2018 ed: [BE] 1004.9 Posting of occupant load. Every thall have the <i>occupant load</i> of the room or space posted in a conspicuous place, moom or space, for the intended configurations. Posted signs shall be of an <i>approve</i> maintained by the owner or the owner's authorized agent.	how often / Seasona hcy? $Qaly$ loyees, those se ogram on file with SS(an s pic) room or space lear the main <i>exi</i> ed legible perma	rving or j th license that is an t or exit a nent desi	g. Dur pouring alcohoi, current ee. Wirdow assembly occupancy access doorway from th gn and shall be
Security Assistance Plan What measures are taken to mitigate/control underage drinking? Employees a <u>A</u> <u>Q</u> <u>Uestonable</u> <u>age</u> . Please state whether you will be using Security Guards: If so, how many?Ho Do you use off-duty police officers to provide security? <u>Use</u> Number: <u>2-3</u> Frequer <u>Music Festivals</u> Per City Ordinance (6-2021) All licensees are required to have proof of their emplorer training pro- Is the building capacity notice clearly posted? Where? <u>Ison the Conces</u> How is occupancy load enforced? <u>By Hicket Sales</u> nternational Fire Code 2018 ed: [BE] 1004.9 Posting of occupant load. Every shall have the <i>occupant load</i> of the room or space posted in a conspicuous place, moom or space, for the intended configurations. Posted signs shall be of an <i>approve</i> maintained by the owner or the owner's authorized agent.	how often / Seasona hcy? $Qaly$ loyees, those se ogram on file with SS(an s pic) room or space lear the main <i>exi</i> ed legible perma	rving or j th license that is an t or exit a nent desi	g. Dur pouring alcohoi, current ee. Wirdow assembly occupancy access doorway from th gn and shall be

Has	applicant, any person connected with, or any person having an interest in this	business:	
	ever been convicted of any violation of law other than for a traffic violation?	No	
	ever served time in prison or other correctional institution?	NO	
0	ever had an alcohol beverage license suspended or revoked at any time in an	v location?	No
(if answer is yes, give details)			
If this application is for RENEWAL of an existing license, enter License Number of existing license			
If business is an eating establishment, are SUNDAY sales of alcoholic beverages contemplated?			

Proof of liquor liability insurance: Please attach the current declaration page or certificate of insurance showing the required liquor liability insurance coverage.

ALL OF THE FOREGOING INFORMATION IS HEREBY GIVEN AND ALL OF THE FOREGOING STATEMENTS ARE HEREBY MADE ON OATH WILLFULLY, KNOWINGLY, AND ABSOLUTELY, AND THE SAME IS AND ARE HEREBY SWORN TO ME TO BE TRUE UNDER PENALTY OF LAW.

TENAETT OF EAV.				
	7/ED4	Approval	Signature	Date
Applicant Signature	Date TTO 0	City Manager		
Sworn to and subscribed before me this 15th	11. 2024	Zohing		
Sworn to and subscribed before me this	day of July 2024			
- duy doman	Nota	ry Public		
V				
	ACYE	1111		
	"IN THIS	A In		
	E NOTA	N. T.		
	, , ,	1 / A		





BACKGROUND CHECK REQUIREMENTS FOR ALCOHOL LICENSE

PRIOR TO OR AT THE TIME OF SUBMITTING AN APPLICATION, THE APPLICANT FOR A LICENSE OR PERMIT ISSUED UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS ARTICLE AND THE OWNER OF THE PROPOSED BUSINESS OR A PRINCIPAL OFFICER OR MEMBER, THEREOF, AND /OR A MANAGER OF SUCH BUSINESS DESIGNATED BY SUCH OFFICER OR MEMBER, SHALL SUBMIT THEMSELVES FOR FINGERPRINTING AS PROVIDED BY LAW AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY PROCEDURES AS DIRECTED BY THE CITY MANAGER.

ORDINANCE NO. 6-2019, Sec. 6-5. - Reporting to City/Police - Licensee.

BE IT FURTHER UNDERSTOOD THAT THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING THIS INFORMATION IS TO SATISFY THE REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND, REGARDING AN ALCOHOL LICENSE APPLICATION.

Applicant: Evan Goetz

Business/Event Name: <u>Tybee Post Theater Music Festival</u>

- - - - - - - - - - - - -

Approved <u>x</u> Denied _____

Assistant Chief of Police

7/22/2024 Date

Return approved/denied form:

Sharon S. Shaver City Licensing Coordinator

File Attachments for Item:

5. Contract: First Data Company to assist in on-line reservations for facilities



Merchant Services

Program Terms and Conditions (Program Guide)

CCNGov2210 SMB/CMM

PART I: CONFIRMATION PAGE

PROCESSOR Name: CardConnect, LLC a business unit of First Data Merchant Services, LLC INFORMATION:

Address: 1000 Continental Drive, Suite 300, King of Prussia, PA 19046

URL: www.cardconnect.com C

Customer Service #: 1-877-828-0720

Please read this entire Agreement. It describes the terms on which we will provide Merchant Processing Services to you. This summary provides answers to commonly asked questions about your Agreement.

1. **Your Discount Rates and other fees** are calculated based on transactions qualifying for certain program pricing and interchange rates levied by the applicable Card Organization. Transactions that fail to qualify for these rates will be charged an additional fee. Interchange and program pricing levied by the Card Organization is subject to change, (see Section 6 of the General Terms & Conditions).

2. We may debit your bank account (also referred to as your Settlement Account) for amounts owed to us.

3. You are liable for Chargebacks and there are many reasons why a Chargeback may occur. When they occur we will debit your Settlement Account. See Section 8 of the General Terms & Conditions.

4. **If you wish to dispute any charge or funding**, you must notify us within 60 days of the date of the statement on which the charge or funding appears.

Information about Bank:

Your Bank, who is a Visa and Mastercard Member Bank, is Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (Bank) PO Box 6079, Concord, CA 94524 Attn: Merchant Services (407) 237-6727

b) Bank is the entity approved to extend acceptance of Visa and Mastercard products directly to you and will be a party to the sections of this Agreement listed in Section 2.2.

c) Bank works with Processor to provide the Services to you with respect to Visa Cards and to Mastercard Cards.

 d) Bank shall, either directly or through Processor, advise you of pertinent Card Organization Rules with which you must comply.

e) Bank is responsible for and must provide settlement funds to you and will be responsible for all funds held in a reserve.

5. **This Agreement limits our liability to you**. See Section 10 of the General Terms & Conditions for further details.

6. We have assumed certain risks by agreeing to provide you with the Services. Accordingly, we may take certain actions to mitigate our risk, including termination of this Agreement, and holding monies otherwise payable to you (see Sections 16 and 17 of the General Terms & Conditions).

7. **By executing this Agreement with us** you authorize us and our Affiliates to obtain and share financial and credit information regarding your business and the signers and guarantors of this Agreement until all your obligations to us and our Affiliates are satisfied.

8. **For questions regarding** your Merchant Processing Application and Agreement, please contact Customer Service at <u>1-877-828-0720</u>.

Your Responsibilities:

a) You must comply in full at all times with this Agreement (including the Your Payments Acceptance Guide), all Card Organization Rules and all Cardholder and customer data security and storage requirements.

b) You may view and download the Your Payments Acceptance Guide at ______.

c) You may view and download the Interchange Qualification Matrix and American Express OptBlue® Guide at

d) You may download the Visa and Mastercard rules at: https://usa.visa.com/dam/VCOM/download/about-visa/visa-rulespublic.pdf

www.mastercard.us/content/dam/mccom/global/documents/ mastercard-rules.pdf.

e) For your account to stay operational, you must keep fraud and Chargeback levels below Card Organization thresholds.

f) Please retain a signed copy of your Agreement.

Print Merchant's Business Legal Name:_

By signing below, you:

(i)

Confirm that you have received and read the Application, General Terms & Conditions [Version CCNGov2210 SMB/CMM], including this Confirmation Page, Interchange Rate Schedule, and any addenda, amendments, replacement or renewal agreement(s); and

(ii) Agree to all terms in this Agreement in your capacity as a person authorized to sign on behalf of

NO SALES REPRESENTATIVE IS AUTHORIZED TO ACCEPT OR AGREE TO ANY ALTERATIONS TO THIS AGREEMENT.

Business Principal:

X____

Signature:

Title

Date

Please Print Name of Signer

Item #5.

the business set out in the Application.

NO SALES REPRESENTATIVE IS AUTHORIZED TO ACCEPT OR AGREE TO ANY ALTERATIONS TO THIS AGREEMENT.

Business Principal:

X_ Signature:

Title

Date

Please Print Name of Signer

CCNGov2210 S	MB/CMM PART I: DUPLICATE CONFIRMATION PAGE
PROCESSOR INFORMATION:	Name: CardConnect, LLC a business unit of First Data Merchant Services, LLC Address: 1000 Continental Drive, Suite 300, King of Prussia, PA 19046
	URL: www.cardconnect.com Customer Service #: 1-877-828-0720

Please read this entire Agreement. It describes the terms on which we will provide Merchant Processing Services to you. This summary provides answers to commonly asked questions about your Agreement.

1. **Your Discount Rates and other fees** are calculated based on transactions qualifying for certain program pricing and interchange rates levied by the applicable Card Organization. Transactions that fail to qualify for these rates will be charged an additional fee. Interchange and program pricing levied by the Card Organization is subject to change, (see Section 6 of the General Terms & Conditions).

2. We may debit your bank account (also referred to as your Settlement Account) for amounts owed to us.

3. You are liable for Chargebacks and there are many reasons why a Chargeback may occur. When they occur we will debit your Settlement Account. See Section 8 of the General Terms & Conditions.

4. **If you wish to dispute any charge or funding**, you must notify us within 60 days of the date of the statement on which the charge or funding appears.

Information about Bank:

Your Bank, who is a Visa and Mastercard Member Bank, is Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (Bank) PO Box 6079, Concord, CA 94524 Attn: Merchant Services (407) 237-6727

b) Bank is the entity approved to extend acceptance of Visa and Mastercard products directly to you and will be a party to the sections of this Agreement listed in Section 2.2.

c) Bank works with Processor to provide the Services to you with respect to Visa Cards and to Mastercard Cards.

d) Bank shall, either directly or through Processor, advise you of pertinent Card Organization Rules with which you must comply.

e) Bank is responsible for and must provide settlement funds to you and will be responsible for all funds held in a reserve.

5. **This Agreement limits our liability to you**. See Section 10 of the General Terms & Conditions for further details.

6. We have assumed certain risks by agreeing to provide you with the Services. Accordingly, we may take certain actions to mitigate our risk, including termination of this Agreement, and holding monies otherwise payable to you (see Sections 16 and 17 of the General Terms & Conditions).

7. **By executing this Agreement with us** you authorize us and our Affiliates to obtain and share financial and credit information regarding your business and the signers and guarantors of this Agreement until all your obligations to us and our Affiliates are satisfied.

8. **For questions regarding** your Merchant Processing Application and Agreement, please contact Customer Service at <u>1-877-828-0720</u>.

Your Responsibilities:

a) You must comply in full at all times with this Agreement (including the Your Payments Acceptance Guide), all Card Organization Rules and all Cardholder and customer data security and storage requirements.

b) You may view and download the Your Payments Acceptance Guide at ______.

c) You may view and download the Interchange Qualification Matrix and American Express OptBlue® Guide at

d) You may download the Visa and Mastercard rules at: https://usa.visa.com/dam/VCOM/download/about-visa/visa-rulespublic.pdf

www.mastercard.us/content/dam/mccom/global/documents/ mastercard-rules.pdf.

e) For your account to stay operational, you must keep fraud and Chargeback levels below Card Organization thresholds.

f) Please retain a signed copy of your Agreement.

Print Merchant's Business Legal Name:_

By signing below, you:

- (i) Confirm that you have received and read the Application, General Terms & Conditions [Version CCNGov2210 SMB/CMM], including this Confirmation Page, Interchange Rate Schedule, and any addenda, amendments, replacement or renewal agreement(s); and
- (ii) Agree to all terms in this Agreement in your capacity as a person authorized to sign on behalf of the business set out in the Application.

NO SALES REPRESENTATIVE IS AUTHORIZED TO ACCEPT OR AGREE TO ANY ALTERATIONS TO THIS AGREEMENT.

Business Principal:

Х_

Signature:

Title

Date

CCNGov2210 SMB/CMM

PART II: GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS

1. Your Payment Acceptance Guide and Card Organization Rules

1.1 The General Terms & Conditions (General Terms), together with your Application, the Interchange Rate Schedule and the Your Payments Acceptance Guide constitute the agreement for Card Transaction acceptance and other related Services (this Agreement).

1.2 You agree to comply with the Your Payments Acceptance Guide and, either the Card Organization Rules relevant to you, as they may change over time. The Your Payments Acceptance Guide is available at www.businesstrack.com.

1.3 If there are any inconsistencies between the General Terms and the Your Payments Acceptance Guide, or the Card Organization Rules, the General Terms will govern.

1.4 You may not alter this Agreement.

2. Services and Non-Bank Services

2.1 Your Application will identify the Services you will receive. Certain Services referred to in this Agreement may not be available to you.

2.2 Subject to Card Organization Rules, Services may be performed by us, our Affiliates, our agents, or other third parties we may designate. References to "we" "our" and "us" shall be deemed to be references to Bank and Processor except for the purposes of Sections 2.1, 2.3, 2.4, 6.9, 11.2, 11.5, 11.6, 11.7, 13.1, 20, 24, 32 and 36. Bank shall not be a party to the aforementioned Sections nor shall Bank have any responsibility or liability pursuant to such Sections. Third Party Services, including any apps available in an application marketplace or voice or data services you purchase directly from a third party provider, are not governed by this Agreement and we are not responsible for providing, maintaining, servicing or supporting such services. If you decide to use Third Party Services, you will be responsible for reviewing and understanding the terms and conditions associated with Third Party Services.

Any third party content downloaded or otherwise obtained through the use of the Services is downloaded at your own risk. WE WILL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY ACTIONS OR ANY FAILURES TO ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY, AND WE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ANY LIABILITY RELATED TO ALL THIRD PARTY SERVICES. WE DO NOT WARRANT, ENDORSE, GUARANTEE, OR ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY THIRD PARTY SERVICE OR PRODUCT ADVERTISED OR OFFERED THROUGH THE SERVICES OR ANY HYPERLINKED WEBSITE OR SERVICE, OR FEATURED IN ANY BANNER OR OTHER ADVERTISING, AND WE WILL NOT BE A PARTY TO OR IN ANY WAY MONITOR ANY TRANSACTION BETWEEN YOU AND PROVIDERS OF THIRD PARTY SERVICES OR PRODUCTS.

2.3 If you do not qualify for our full service program but have otherwise been approved for accepting American Express or WEX, your American Express and WEX transactions will be processed through and funded by American Express or WEX (as applicable). American Express and WEX will provide you their own agreements governing those transactions. You agree that (a) we are not responsible and assume no liability for any such transactions; and (b) American Express and WEX may charge additional fees for the services they provide.

2.4 Rather than accepting all categories of card, you have the option to elect to accept only certain categories of card (Limited Acceptance). If you wish to offer Limited Acceptance, you must complete the Limited Acceptance Form and agree to be bound by the additional terms and conditions set out in that document.

3. Access and Use of Services

3.1 Except as specified in the Your Payments Acceptance Guide, or otherwise agreed in writing, the Services shall be for your internal business use in the United States only.

3.2 You shall not and shall not permit any third party to: (a) access or attempt to access any Service that is not intended to be available to you; (b) access or use (in any format) the Services (or any part) through any time-sharing service, service bureau, network, consortium, or other means; (c) without our advanced written consent, use, ship or access Services (or any part) outside or from outside of the United States; (d) perform or attempt to perform any actions that would interfere with the proper working of any Service, prevent access to or use of any Service by other users, or in our reasonable judgment, impose a large load on our infrastructure, network capability or bandwidth; or (e) use the Services (or any part) except as permitted in this Agreement.

3.3 You may use the eligible TransArmor services and portals only to scan IP addresses, URLs and domain names owned by and registered to you.

3.4 We have the right to rely on user names, password and other sign on.

4. Settlement

4.1 As part of the Services, we will process transaction data received from you and facilitate the transfer of funds for your Card sales to your Settlement Account.

4.2 We may debit your Settlement Account for any amounts owed to us, including any amounts paid to you in error. We may also offset any amounts owed to us or our Affiliates related to activity in other accounts maintained in your name or which you, any of your principals, guarantors or authorized signors guarantee.

4.3 You are responsible for providing us with accurate information regarding your Settlement Account. If you change the Settlement Account in which you receive the proceeds of your transactions, you must notify us immediately. If you accept payment types other than Visa, Mastercard, American Express, Discover Network and PayPal (such as TeleCheck Services), you are also responsible for contacting the Card Organizations or companies governing those Cards to notify them of this change. We shall not be liable for delays in receipt of funds or errors in debit and credit entries caused by you or any other Person, including any delays or errors resulting from errors in Settlement Account information you provide.

4.4 If a Default occurs you agree we may without notice change processing or payment terms and/or suspend credits or other payments of any amounts due or which become due to you.

4.5 Your right to receive any amounts due or to become due from us is expressly subject and subordinate to Chargeback, setoff, lien, and our rights to withhold settlement funds under this Agreement without regard to whether such Chargeback, setoff, lien, and the withholding of settlement fund rights are being applied to claims that are liquidated, unliquidated, fixed, contingent, matured or unmatured.

4.6 If you undertake Global ePricing (GeP) Transactions, you acknowledge that: (a) Settlement by us of GeP Transactions shall be made in the Local Currency on the basis of the Transaction Price of the GeP Sales Transaction under the process defined by the Card Organizations; (b) you shall be subject to any and all Foreign currency exchange rate exposure in connection with all GeP Transactions; and (c) you are solely responsible for all aspects of the GeP Transaction, (other than the performance of GeP Services), including obtaining the Cardholder's agreement to a GeP Transaction, and complying with all Card Organization Rules applicable to you. Dynamic Currency Conversion as defined by Card Organization Rules is not permitted nor provided as part of the GeP Services.

5. Exclusivity

5.1 You will use us as your exclusive provider of all Services during the term of this Agreement.

6. Fees; Adjustments; Collection of Amounts Due

6.1 You will be charged, and agree to pay us, all fees set out on your Fee Schedule or elsewhere in this Agreement.

6.2 The fees specified on your Fee Schedule are based on the assumption that your transactions will qualify at the Anticipated Interchange and Program Pricing Levels associated with your account. If a transaction fails to qualify at the Anticipated Interchange Program Pricing Levels, you will be charged a Non-Qualified Fee, plus a Non-Qualified Surcharge for each such non-qualifying transaction.

6.3 If you accept a Card or transaction other than the type anticipated for your account, we will charge you our thencurrent transaction fee(s) for the Card and transaction and you will be responsible for the transaction to the same extent as you would be if it was of a Card type elected and approved.

If your fees are not paid through our automatic debiting process, and we are required to pursue collection efforts, you will reimburse us for our costs in an amount of not less than \$100.00.

6.4 The fees specified on your Fee Schedule are based on (a) estimated annual volume and average transaction size for all Services provided under this Agreement; and (b) your method of doing business. If the actual volume or average transaction size are not as expected or if you significantly alter your method of doing business, we may adjust our fees without prior notice to you. It is your responsibility to notify us of any such changes to your business.

6.5 We may adjust our fees to reflect new or increased fees, taxes or assessments imposed by any Card Organization or other Persons related to the Services. It is your responsibility to pay all such adjusted fees effective from the date specified in our notice to you.

6.6 Any Account Minimum Fee set out in your Application will be charged monthly (beginning in the calendar month after your Application is approved) for each location and will be calculated as the Account Minimum Fee set forth in your Application less the "Discount Fees" and "Other Payment Fees" that you incur for that month and location. The Account Minimum Fee shall never be less than zero.

6.7 An equipment rental fee will be charged each month for each piece of equipment rented from us, plus tax as applicable. You will also be charged for shipping and supplies. 6.8 An Authorization fee will be charged for each Authorization requested, whether the response is approved or declined. If you are being charged a combined fee for both Authorization and Capture we may charge this fee on the communication of all instructions that you transmit to us from your point of sale device or other systems to our computer systems, whether the communications are for Authorization requests or any other capture of information whether or not related to any individual transaction.

6.9 A fee will be charged for each Address Verification Service (AVS) request submitted, whether or not we are able to provide a response to the request.

6.10 Clients opting out of the TransArmor Solution will be charged a Compliance Fee. The Compliance Fee covers our costs for systems maintenance and upgrades, mandatory IRS reporting, as well as costs associated with our required tracking and reporting of your PCI compliance. We will provide a monthly vulnerability "scan," if required, of up to 5 IP addresses. Additional required scans are your responsibility. Payment of the Compliance Fee does not discharge your responsibility to maintain PCI DSS compliance at all times.

6.11 You will be charged a monthly Non-Receipt of PCI Validation fee unless, within 60 days from the date this Agreement is submitted with your signature and on an annual basis after that:

 a) you obtain any quarterly or other periodic PCI-approved vulnerability scans that the Card Organization Rules require you to obtain (for example, if you accept Internet transactions);

b) you remediate vulnerabilities identified by your scans in ways that enable you to comply with the Card Organization Rules and applicable standards (including the PCI DSS); and

c) you confirm that you are following certain data security protocols by (i) completing an online self-assessment questionnaire, which we will make available to you, regarding your systems and payments acceptance practices (SAQ), or (ii) using PCI-approved methods, providing us with other written evidence of your PCI DSS compliance.

If you materially change the systems you use to accept payments and you wish to avoid paying the monthly Non-Receipt of PCI Validation fee, you will need to promptly complete a new SAQ or (using PCI-approved methods) promptly provide us with other written evidence of your PCI DSS compliance.

6.12 If you believe any adjustments should be made to your Settlement Account, you must notify us in writing within 60 days after any debit or credit is or should have been effected. If you notify us after 60 days, you agree we have no obligation to investigate or effect any adjustments. Any voluntary efforts by us to assist you in investigating such matters do not obligate us to continue such investigation or to conduct any future investigation.

6.13 If you fail to pay any amounts due within 30 days of the due date set out in our merchant statement or other communication with you, then we may, in our sole discretion, charge you interest, for such time that the amount and all accrued interest remain outstanding at the lesser of 12% APR or the maximum rate permitted by applicable law

7. Electronic Funding Authorization

7.1 All payments to you shall be made through the automated clearing house system (ACH) and shall normally be electronically transmitted directly to the Settlement Account you have designated or any successor account designated to receive provisional funding of your transactions pursuant to this Agreement. You agree that any Settlement Account designated by you will be an account primarily used for business purposes. We cannot guarantee the timeframe in which payment may be credited by your financial institution.

7.2 You agree to be bound by the operating rules of the ACH and you authorize us to (a) access information from the Settlement Account; (b) initiate credit and/or debit entries by wire or ACH transfer; (c) instruct your financial institution to (i) block or to initiate, if necessary, reversing entries and adjustments for any original entries made to the Settlement Account; and (ii) provide such access and to credit and/or debit or to block the Settlement Account.

7.3 If we cannot process an ACH payment, we may (a) charge you the applicable fee set out in the Pricing Schedule; and (b) suspend all subsequent funding until a new electronic funding agreement is signed by you or you notify us that ACH payments can be processed.

7.4 Any funds pertaining to the Card transactions contemplated by this Agreement now or hereafter in our possession may be commingled with other funds of ours, or, in the case of any funds held pursuant to the foregoing paragraphs, with any other funds of other customers of ours. In addition to any rights now or hereafter granted under applicable law and not by way of limitation of any such rights, we are hereby authorized by you at any time and from time to time, without notice or demand to you or to any other Person (any such notice and demand being hereby expressly waived), to set off, recoup and to appropriate and to apply any and all such funds against and on account of your obligations to us and our respective Affiliates under this Agreement and any other agreement with us our respective Affiliates for any related equipment or related services (including any check services), whether such obligations are liquidated, unliquidated, fixed, contingent, matured or unmatured.

8. Chargebacks, Fines and Penalties

8.1 Cardholders and Issuers are authorized by Card Organization Rules and by law to reverse and Chargeback transactions that you submit to us. Further details are set out in the Your Payments Acceptance Guide and in the Card Organization Rules.

8.2 You are obligated to reimburse us (and authorize us to debit your Settlement Account) for (a) all refunds, credits, Chargebacks and adjustments relating to transactions that you submit for processing; and (b) any fees, fines, assessments, obligations or other charges a Card Organization imposes on us in relation to your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of your agents or those acting on your behalf.

8.3 Refunds, Credits, returns and Chargebacks for GeP Transactions shall be treated as independent transactions with a Transaction Rate as determined by the Card Organization.

9. Your Representations and Warranties

9.1 By submitting a transaction to us, you represent and warrant that the transaction:

a) is genuine and arises from a genuine sale or service that you directly sold or provided as described on your Application. (The submission of Authorization requests and/or Card transaction by you for Card sales or cash advances transacted by another business is considered laundering or factoring and is prohibited);

b) represents the correct amount of the goods or services purchased by the Cardholder from your business as identified on your Application;

c) is not subject to any dispute, set-off or counterclaim;

d) to your knowledge is not the result of fraud and has been authorized by the Cardholder

e) does not violate the law of any applicable jurisdiction, including the jurisdiction where you are located, where the Cardholder is located, or where we are located

f) except for any delayed delivery or advance deposit Card transactions expressly authorized under this Agreement, included your simultaneous delivery of the goods or services to the Cardholder; and g) complies with this Agreement and Card Organization Rules.

9.2 You further represent and warrant, as of the date of this Agreement and at the time of submission of each transaction, that:

a) you are validly existing, in good standing and free to enter into this Agreement;

b) you have not changed the nature of your business or practices in a way not previously disclosed to us;

c) each statement made on the Application or other information provided to us in support of this Agreement is true, accurate and complete and you have maintained and updated this information to keep it true, accurate, current and complete;

d) you have not filed a bankruptcy petition not previously disclosed to us;

e) you will not process any credit transactions that do not correspond to a previous transaction on the original sales draft;

f) you will not at any time during the term of this Agreement or until all amounts have been paid in full under this Agreement, grant or pledge any security interest or lien of any type in any Reserve Account, Settlement Account or in any of the transaction proceeds to any Person without our consent; and

g) where you provide FNS, SNAP or WIC Benefits (as described in the Your Payments Acceptance Guide), you are an FNS authorized merchant and are not disqualified or withdrawn from redeeming food stamp coupons or otherwise disqualified or withdrawn by FNS.

10. Limitations on Liability; Exclusion of Consequential Damages

10.1 THIS AGREEMENT IS A SERVICE AGREEMENT. USE OF THE SERVICES, SOFTWARE OR ANY EQUIPMENT (INCLUDING ANY SERVICES, SOFTWARE OR EQUIPMENT PROVIDED BY OR THROUGH A THIRD PARTY) IS AT YOUR OWN RISK AND TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW THE SERVICES, EQUIPMENT AND ANY SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS" AND WE DISCLAIM ALL REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, MADE TO YOU OR ANY OTHER PERSON, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTIES REGARDING QUALITY, SUITABILITY, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR THAT SERVICES, EQUIPMENT OR ANY SOFTWARE WILL OPERATE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE OR THAT THE SERVICES, EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE ARE SECURE, FREE OF VIRUSES OR OTHER HARMFUL COMPONENTS, OR DO NOT INFRINGE THE RIGHTS OF ANY PERSON.

10.2 IN NO EVENT SHALL WE OR OUR AFFILIATES OR ANY OF OUR OR THEIR RESPECTIVE DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS OR SUBCON- TRACTORS, BE LIABLE UNDER ANY THEORY OF TORT, CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHER LEGAL THEORY FOR LOST PROFITS, LOST REVENUES, LOST BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, EACH OF WHICH IS EXCLUDED BY AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH DAMAGES WERE FORESEEABLE OR WHETHER ANY PERSON HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

10.3 NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING IN THIS AGREEMENT TO THE CONTRARY (INCLUDING SECTION 26):

a) OUR CUMULATIVE LIABILITY FOR ALL LOSSES, CLAIMS, SUITS, CONTROVERSIES, BREACHES OR DAMAGES FOR ANY CAUSE WHATSOEVER (INCLUDING THOSE ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT AND ANY INDEMNITIES), REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION OR LEGAL THEORY, SHALL NOT EXCEED, (I) \$50,000; OR (II) THE AMOUNT OF FEES RECEIVED BY US UNDER THIS AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES PERFORMED IN THE IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING 12 MONTHS, WHICHEVER IS LESS;

b) ANY LIABILITY THAT WE MAY HAVE TO YOU FOR ANY DELAY IN FUNDING TRANSACTIONS WILL BE LIMITED TO INTEREST COMPUTED FROM THE DATE THAT YOU SUBMIT THE TRANSACTION TO THE DATE THAT WE FUND THE TRANSACTION AT THE RATE OF THE FEDERAL FUNDS AS SET BY THE FEDERAL RESERVE BANK OF NEW YORK, NEW YORK, LESS ONE PERCENT (1%); AND

c) OUR LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH ANY EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE SHALL NOT EXCEED THE PURCHASE PRICE OR PRIOR TWELVE MONTH'S RENT OR FEES, AS APPLICABLE, PAID TO US FOR THE PARTICULAR EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE INVOLVED.

11. Communications with Customers through the Services

11.1 You shall provide and obtain any disclosures and consents related to the E-SIGN Act that may be required in connection with your communications and agreements with your customers through the Services.

11.2 If you are able to discern any information about a particular entity or individual from the information available through Insightics or any other Service, either alone or with other information in your possession, you agree that the information may be subject to certain privacy, marketing,

insider trading, or other applicable laws and you shall limit your use and disclosure of that information in accordance with all applicable laws.

11.3 With respect to each customer who desires to receive marketing material, transaction receipts or other communications from you via text message or email, such customer must give the appropriate consent in writing; you are NOT permitted to add or modify a customer's consent indication on behalf of the Customer.

11.4 You (or your agents acting on your behalf) shall only send marketing materials or other communications to a customer's provided phone number, street address, and/or email address if the customer has specifically consented in writing executed by the customer.

11.5 If you offer any loyalty program to customers through the Services or otherwise, you are solely responsible for any and all offerings made available to customers in connection with your loyalty program (each, an Offer). The Offer and all of the related information, including branding (trademarks and logos) and images (collectively, the Content) are provided and determined by you. You are solely responsible for ensuring the accuracy of the Offer and Content.

11.6 By providing Content to us as part of our Services, you grant us the right and license to use, modify (e.g. for formatting and display purposes), publicly perform, publicly display, reproduce and distribute such Content on and through the Services, including any Software we make available to you. This license includes the right for us to make Content available to other users who may access and use your Content.

11.7 You are solely responsible for (a) fulfilling the terms of your Offers and determining the criteria for your customers to earn and redeem perks, rewards, stamps, credits or incentives (Rewards); and (b) honoring Rewards for eligible customers who earn those Rewards and you agree not to withdraw or terminate any Offer after it has been made publicly available to your customers without offering a reasonable alternative method for customers to redeem any Rewards related to the Offer.

11.8 You are solely liable for, and we shall have no liability in relation to, any costs or expenses (including refunds) associated with your Offers or Rewards or your failure to issue, accept, fulfill or redeem any Rewards

12. Confidentiality

12.1 You shall safeguard all confidential information we supply or otherwise make accessible to you (including the terms of this Agreement) using a reasonable degree of care. You shall only use our confidential information for the purposes of this Agreement and shall not disclose our confidential information to any person, except as we may agree in advance and in writing. We acknowledge that you may be subject to public records laws for the State in which you are located and any non-exempt public records, which may include our confidential information, are subject to inspection and copying upon request by the public. If a Public Records request is made for our confidential information, you will provide us 10 days' prior notice of your intent to disclose the records so that we may seek a protective order or take other court action. If no such action is filed, you may disclose the records. At our request you shall return to us or destroy all of our confidential information in your possession or control.

12.2 You agree that breach of the restrictions on use or disclosure of our confidential information would result in immediate and irreparable harm to us, and money damages would be inadequate to compensate for that harm. We shall be entitled to equitable relief, in addition to all other available remedies, to redress any breach.

12.3 You may submit comments or ideas about our Services, including about how to improve our Services. By submitting any idea, you agree that: (a) we expressly disclaim any confidentiality obligations or use restrictions, express or implied, with respect to any idea; (b) your submission will be non-confidential; and (c) we are free to use and disclose any idea on an unrestricted basis without notifying or compensating you. You release us from all liability and obligations that may arise from our receipt, review, use or disclosure of any portion of any idea.

13. Use of Data

13.1 You agree we may use Transaction Data for the purpose of providing additional products and services to you, other merchants, or third parties. This includes using Cardholder information, dates, transaction details, and other Transaction Data to provide you with analytics products and services as well as collecting using Transaction Data aggregated with other merchants' transaction data to provide you, other merchants, third parties with analytic products and services.

13.2 In the course of providing Services, we may collect information relating to activities on your network, including network configuration, TCP/ IP packet headers and contents, log files, malicious codes, and Trojan horses. We retain the right to use this information or aggregations of this information, in addition to the Transaction Data described above, for any reasonable purpose.

13.3 You agree that we may obtain relevant information from any applicable telecommunications provider you utilize, as necessary to investigate any allegation of fraud, suspected fraud or other actual or alleged wrongful act by you in connection with the Services.

14. Intellectual Property Rights

14.1 All right, title, and interest in and to all confidential information and intellectual property related to the Services (including the Marks, all Software, the content of any materials, web screens, layouts, processing techniques, procedures, algorithms, and methods and any updates, changes, alterations, or modifications to or derivative works from such intellectual property), owned, developed or licensed by us prior to, during the term of, or after this Agreement, or employed by us in connection with the Services, shall be and remain, as among the Parties, our or our affiliates', our vendors' or our licensors' (as applicable) sole and exclusive property and all right, title and interest associated with the Services, Equipment and Software not expressly granted by us in this Agreement are deemed withheld.

You may not use our Marks in any manner, including in any advertisements, displays, or press releases, without our prior written consent.

14.2 You may not, nor may you permit any third party to do any of the following: (a) decompile, disassemble, reverse engineer, or otherwise attempt to reconstruct or discover by any means any source code, underlying ideas or algorithms of the Service, Software or Equipment (or any part), except to the extent that such restriction is expressly prohibited by law; (b) modify, translate, or alter in any manner, the Service, Software or Equipment (or any part) or the Marks; (c) create derivative works of or based on the Service (or any part), Software or the Marks; (d) except for backup and archival purposes, directly or indirectly copy the Service or any Software (or any part); (e) republish, upload, post, transmit, disclose, or distribute (in any format) the Service or Software (or any part) except as permitted in this Agreement; or (f) remove, relocate, or otherwise alter any proprietary rights notices from the Service, Software or documentation (or any part) or the Marks.

14.3 If we provide you with copies of or access to any Software or documentation, unless otherwise expressly stated in writing, that Software and documentation is provided on a personal, non-exclusive, non-transferable, non-assignable, revocable limited license for the period of your subscription to the applicable Service and solely for you to access and use the Software and documentation to receive the relevant Services for its intended purpose on systems owned or licensed by you. Software can only be used with certain computer operating systems and it is your responsibility to ensure that you have the appropriate hardware and software to use the Software. 14.4 You shall not take any action inconsistent with the stated title and ownership in this Section 14. You will not file any action, in any forum that challenges the ownership of any part of the Service or any Software, materials or documentation. Failure to comply with this provision will constitute a material breach of this Agreement. We have the right to immediately terminate your access to and use of the Service in the event of a challenge by you.

14.5 If you are acquiring any Services on behalf of any part of the United States Government (Government): (a) any use, duplication, or disclosure by the Government is subject to the restrictions set forth in subparagraphs (a) through (d) of the Commercial Computer Software-Restricted Rights clause of FAR 52.227-19 when applicable, or in subparagraph (c)(1)(ii) of the Rights in Technical Data and Computer Software clause at DFARS 252.227-7013, and in similar clauses in the NASA FAR Supplement; and (b) we are the contractor/manufacturer, with the address set forth in this Agreement.

15. Assignment

15.1 Any transfer or assignment of this Agreement by you, without our prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld by us), by operation of law or otherwise, is voidable by us and, in such event we may: (a) suspend Services at any time and without notice, (b) hold you and your guarantors liable for all obligations incurred by such purchaser or transferee, and (c) offset funding and obligations incurred on your accounts without regard to whether such funding or obligations relate to activities of you or of such purchaser or transferee.

15.2 If you make an assignment (or provide a security interest) of receivables covered by this Agreement, then we may, at our option, elect to: (a) refuse to acknowledge such assignment unless accompanied by an authorization to both initiate debits or credits to the bank account of the assignee; (b) terminate this Agreement immediately; or (c) charge for any transfers that we are called upon to make manually to fulfill such an assignment at the rate of \$100 per transfer.

15.3 Processor may not assign or transfer this Agreement to any other Person without your prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld by you). Subject to Card Organization Rules, Bank may assign or transfer this Agreement and its rights, duties and obligations hereunder, in whole or in part, to any Person, whether in connection with a change in sponsorship, as set forth in the preceding paragraph, or otherwise, without notice to you or your consent. In addition, another Visa and Mastercard member may be substituted for Bank under whose sponsorship this Agreement is performed with respect to Visa and Mastercard transactions. Upon such substitution, such other Visa and Mastercard member shall be responsible for all obligations required of Bank, including full responsibility for its Card program and such other obligations as may be expressly required by applicable Card Organization Rules.

15.4 If this Agreement is assigned with our permission or by operation of law, the restriction against assignment shall continue to apply to the assignee, who will not be authorized to further assign this Agreement except as described in this Section.

16. Terms; Events of Default

16.1 This Agreement becomes effective only when approved by our Credit Department. We reserve the right to immediately suspend or terminate your account and this Agreement if you fail to meet our credit policies even if your account has been activated to submit transactions prior to your approval by our Credit Department.

16.2 The initial term of this Agreement is three years from the date of your approval by our Credit Department (the Initial Term). After the Initial Term, subject to Section 16.3, this Agreement shall automatically extend for additional period of one year each (each an Extended Term).

16.3 A party may give written notice to the other party, not later than 30 days before the end of the Initial Term or the relevant Extended Term, to terminate this Agreement at the end of the Initial Term or the relevant Extended Term, as the case may be. Should you fail to notify us in writing that you wish to terminate this Agreement under this Section

16.3 you agree that you will continue to be charged certain fees pursuant to this Agreement even if you are not using your account. If you have an equipment lease, termination of this Agreement does not terminate that equipment lease.

16.4 We may terminate this Agreement or suspend any or all of the Services immediately and without notice in the following circumstances (each, a Default):

a) a material adverse change in your business, financial condition, or business prospects;

b) any assignment or transfer of voting control of you or your parent or sale of all or a substantial portion of your assets;

c) irregular Card sales by you, excessive Chargebacks, noncompliance with any applicable data security standards, as determined by Servicers, or any Card Organization, or any other Person, or an actual or suspected data security breach, or any other circumstances which, in our sole discretion, may increase our exposure for your Chargebacks or otherwise present a financial or security risk to us; d) you breach any of your representations, warranties or covenants in this Agreement or you default in any material respect in the performance or observance of this Agreement or in any agreement with any of our respective Affiliates, including the establishment or maintenance of funds in a Reserve Account or any failure to notify us of any change to the information in your merchant profile;

e) your actions come under investigation by any Card Organization resulting in the Card Organization directing us to terminate or suspend our Services or Agreement with you; or

f) you violate any applicable law or Card Organization Rule or we reasonably believe that termination of this Agreement or suspension of Services is necessary to comply with any law, including the rules and regulations promulgated by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of the Treasury.

16.5 We may suspend or terminate this Agreement or our provision of one or more Services to you without penalty if: (a) the Service is generally discontinued; (b) our arrangement with the Card Organization or third party vendor in relation to the Service expires or terminates; (c) we are directed to end the service to you by any Card Organization; (d) we are prevented from providing the Service by any law, regulation, requirement, ruling or notice issued in any form whatsoever by judicial or governmental authority; or (e) we are for any other reason no longer able to provide the Service.

16.6 We may also suspend Services to: (a) prevent damages to, or degradation of, our or a third party vendor or network's network integrity that may be caused by a third party; (b) comply with any law, regulation, court order or other governmental request which requires immediate action; or (c) otherwise protect us or a third party vendor from potential legal liability. To the extent commercially reasonable, we shall give notice to you before suspending any Services in these circumstances. If not commercially reasonable to give prior notice, we shall give notice to you as soon as commercially practicable thereafter. Availability of Services may vary due to events beyond the control of us or our third party vendors. In the event of a suspension of a Service under this Section, we or the applicable third party vendor shall promptly restore the Services after the event giving rise to the suspension has been resolved.

16.7 Subject to Section 16.8, you can terminate this Agreement if we notify you of an increase to your fees or add new fees and you notify us that you are terminating this Agreement within 30 days of our notice. If you do not notify us in the required period, you are deemed to have accepted the fee changes. 16.8 Your right to terminate under Section 16.7 does not apply to increases in rates or any other charges or new fees imposed on us by third parties (including the Card Organizations) which we pass on to you in accordance with Section 6.5 or where we adjust your fees in accordance with Section 6.4. Any termination in these circumstances shall be considered a breach of this Agreement

16.9 The expiration or termination of this Agreement shall not affect the obligations and rights of the parties pursuant to provisions of this Agreement which by their terms are intended to survive, including Sections 8, 10, 12, 14, 17, 19, 26 and 27. After expiration or termination of this Agreement or your subscription to a particular Service for any reason: (a) your right and license to access and use the Software and documentation associated with the Service shall immediately cease and, within five (5) days after such event, you shall either return to us or destroy all Software and documentation provided to you by us and shall so certify to us in writing; and (b) you shall continue to bear total responsibility for all transactions you have submitted to us and all Chargebacks, fees, Card Organization fines imposed on us as a result of your acts or omissions, credits and adjustments resulting from Card transactions processed pursuant to this Agreement, and all other amounts then due or which may become due under this Agreement. On termination due to a Default, all amounts owing to us shall be immediately due and payable.

16.10 If you file for protection under the U.S. bankruptcy code or any other laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, assignment for the benefit of creditors or similar laws, and you continue to use our Services, it is your responsibility to open new accounts to distinguish pre and post filing obligations. You acknowledge that as long as you utilize the accounts you established prior to such filing, we will not be able to systematically segregate your post-filing transactions or prevent set-off of the pre-existing obligations. In that event, you will be responsible for submitting an accounting record supporting any adjustments that you may claim.

16.11 The Card Organizations maintain merchant lists such as the Member Alert To Control High-risk (Merchants) (MATCH) who have had their merchant agreements or card acceptance rights terminated for cause. If this Agreement is terminated for cause, you

(a) agree that we may report your business name and the names and other information regarding your principals to the Card Organizations for inclusion on such list(s); and (b) waive and hold us harmless from and against any and all claims which you may have as a result of such reporting.

17. Reserve

17.1 You agree that in addition to any other rights we have under this Agreement, we may establish a Reserve consisting of cash or other assets that we will hold to satisfy your obligations or potential obligations under this Agreement or any other agreement with us or our Affiliates.

17.2 The amount of the Reserve shall be set by us in our sole discretion based upon your processing history and the potential risk of loss to us, as we may determine.

17.3 The Reserve shall be fully funded upon three days' notice to you or immediately in instances of suspected fraud or a Default.

17.4 The Reserve may be funded by all or any combination of: (a) one or more debits to your Settlement Account or any other accounts held by Bank or any of its Affiliates, at any financial institution maintained in your name or in the name of any of your principals, or any of your guarantors, or if any of same are authorized signers on such account; (b) any payments otherwise due to you from us or our Affiliates; or (c) any other collateral that you agree to provide and we agree to accept in our mutual discretion.

17.5 If this Agreement is terminated by any party, an immediate Reserve may be established without notice in the manner provided above. In these circumstances, the Reserve will be held by us for 10 months after termination of this Agreement or for such longer period of time as is consistent with resolution of all liability from your Card acceptance including Chargebacks, fines, fees or obligations of any other kind.

17.6 Any funds we hold in Reserve represent general payment obligations to you which do not become due until all potential contingent liabilities arising from your Card transactions have expired or lapsed. We may set-off any obligations that you owe to us before returning the balance of the Reserve. Unless specifically required by law, you shall not be entitled to interest on any funds held by us in the Reserve, and we shall be entitled to accrued interest in such funds.

17.6 If any funds we hold in Reserve are not sufficient to cover the Chargebacks, adjustments, fees and other charges and amounts due from you, or if the funds in Reserve have been released, you agree to promptly pay us such sums upon request.

18. Account Information

18.1 You are solely responsible for: (a) ensuring the accuracy of all information and data regarding your business that you provide to us or our service providers in connection with the

Services, including any menus loaded onto a Device; (b) verifying that all information and data loaded onto a Device by us or our service providers at your request are accurate prior to your business use of such Device; and (c) immediately notifying us should any information you have provided to us become inaccurate or misleading. We and our service providers disclaim any and all liability arising out of any inaccuracies with respect to such information or data.

18.2 Upon request, you will provide us and our Affiliates quarterly financial statements within 45 days of the end of each fiscal quarter and annual audited financial statements within 90 days of the end of each fiscal year. Any financial statements provided must be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. You will also provide other information concerning your business and your compliance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement as we may reasonably request.

18.3 You authorize us and our Affiliates to obtain from third parties financial and credit information relating to you in connection with our determination whether to accept this Agreement and our continuing evaluation of your financial and credit status. We may also access and use information which you have provided to us for any other reason.

18.4 Upon request, you shall provide to us and our Affiliates or our representatives or regulators (as well as those of the Card Organizations) reasonable access to your facilities and records for the purpose of performing any inspection (including of Equipment) and copying of books and records deemed appropriate. You shall pay the costs incurred by us or our Affiliates for such inspection, including costs incurred for airfare and hotel accommodation.

18.5 You authorize us to share information provided by you in your Application or otherwise with other relevant organizations, including those involved in the provision of the Services.

19. Audit Rights

19.1 Upon notice to you, we may audit your usage, records and security, your customer's payment processing information, and the Services to ensure that (a) you are using the Services in full compliance with this Agreement; (b) all applicable fees have been paid; and; (c) you are in full compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and rules (including Card Organization Rules). Any such audit shall be conducted during regular business hours at your offices and shall not interfere unreasonably with your business.

19.2 You shall cooperate fully with any investigation or audit we or any Card Organization may undertake in relation to data security and you authorize us to share the details of any questionnaire or compliance report with the Card Organizations

20. Software Updates and Maintenance

20.1 We may perform maintenance on Software or Services which may result in service interruptions, delays, or errors. We will not be liable for any such interruptions, delays, errors, or bugs. You agree that we may contact you in order to assist you with the Software or Services and obtain information needed to identify and fix any errors.

20.2 We may, at our discretion, release enhancements, improvements or other updates to any Software. If we notify you of any such update, you shall integrate and install such update into your systems within thirty (30) days of your receipt of such notice. You acknowledge that failure to install any updates in a timely fashion may impair the functionality of the Software or Services. We shall have no liability for your failure to properly install the most current version of any Software or any update, and we shall have no obligation to provide support or services for any outdated versions.

20.3 You acknowledge and understand that certain Software can automatically install, download, and/or deploy updated and/or new components, which may include a new version of the Software itself. You shall not, in any event or in any manner, impede the update process. You agree to assume full responsibility and indemnify us for all damages and losses, of any nature, for all adverse results or third party claims arising from your impeding the update process.

20.4 We and our Wireless Vendor(s) reserve the right to make changes in the configuration of Wireless Services, Wireless Networks, Wireless Equipment, Wireless Software, rules of operation, accessibility periods, identification procedures, type and location of equipment, allocation and quantity of resources utilized, programming languages, administrative and operational algorithms and designation of the control center serving you at the particular address.

20.5 The default version and functionality of Clover software applications that are accessible at the time you acquire a Clover Device may vary.

21. Accessing Services via wireless services, the Internet or third parties

21.1 You may access certain of our Services through a Device using a wired (ethernet) or wireless (WiFi or cellular) connection to the internet. You are solely responsible for the payment of any fees that may be imposed by your internet/data provider. Your use of any Services accessed wirelessly or through the internet is subject to: (a) the terms of any agreements you have with your internet/data provider; and (b) availability, transmission range and uptime of the services and any wireless equipment.

21.2 You agree that we shall not be liable to you for any claims, damages, losses, obligations, costs or expenses or other liability arising directly or indirectly from or otherwise concerning (a) any termination, suspension, delay or disruption of service (including billing for a service) by the internet, any common carrier or any third party service provider; (b) any failure, disruption or malfunction of any of the Services, the Internet, or any communications network, facility or equipment beyond our or a third party's reasonable control, whether or not attributable to one or more common carriers; (c) your failed attempts to access any Services or to complete transactions via any of the Services; or (d) any failure to transmit, obtain or collect data or for human, machine or software errors or faulty or erroneous input by you.

21.3 We may alter which Devices and browsers are approved as compatible with particular Services in our discretion.

21.4 If a Service relies on online connectivity to provide upto-date data, you assume all risk, responsibility and liability associated with any transaction that you choose to conduct while the Service is offline.

22. Service Integration

22.1 Unless otherwise agreed in writing, you have the sole responsibility to select and employ any competent programming agent(s) to accomplish any programming required to make your systems function correctly with our platforms (Integration). You shall be responsible for all technical support for your systems and Integration related issues. You agree that you will use commercially reasonable efforts to complete any Integration as soon as possible. You will be responsible for all of your own development and implementation costs associated with such Integration.

22.2 You acknowledge that unless and until you complete any Integration, no Services which require such Integration shall need be provided by us to you pursuant to this Agreement.

22.3 Upon your request to us, and upon payment of any applicable fees, we may provide you with set-up services to assist with any Integration.

23. Security

23.1 You are solely responsible for establishing and maintaining Card Organization Rule compliant security policies and procedures to prevent unauthorized access to and use of Cardholder Information or any other data, including by implementing: (a) all steps required to comply

with the PCI DSS, including ensuring all third parties and software use by you in connection with your payment processing are compliant with PCI DSS; (b) appropriate controls to limit access to, and render unreadable prior to discarding, all Cardholder Information and other data; (c) firewalls, passwords and other appropriate security features to protect against unauthorized access to your terminals, systems, the Services and any Software by your employees, contractors, customers, or by any other person (including instituting appropriate controls to prevent employees or others from submitting credits that do not reflect bona fide returns or reimbursements of earlier transactions); and (d) any other reasonable protective techniques suggested by us. You are required to provide information to us regarding your PCI-DSS compliance when requested, including but not limited to an annual questionnaire that we will make available to you.

23.2 If you become aware of any loss, theft or unauthorized use of any data and/or any suspected breach of your systems or any suspicious transactions or fraudulent activity or if any other Data Security Event occurs, you shall (a) immediately notify us (and, as required under the Card Organization Rules, each Card Organization); (b) cooperate fully with any investigation into such matter by us or any Card Organization; (c) investigate the matter and perform all remedial actions reasonably specified by us; (d) not, without our prior written consent, take any action, or fail to take any action, which prejudices our rights under this Agreement; (e) not admit any liability, assume any financial obligation, pay any money, or incur any expense in connection with any Data Security Event without our prior written consent. If you do so, it will be at your own expense; and (f) grant us and our vendors the right to access and perform a scan of the IP addresses identified within your profile (and you agree and authorize payment for the additional scan). We reserve the right to deny you access to the Services, in whole or in part, if we believe that any loss, theft or unauthorized use of any data or access information has occurred.

23.3 You are responsible for all electronic communications sent to us or to any third party. When we receive communications from you we will assume you sent it to us.

23.4 You will not obtain ownership rights in any Cardholder Information. You must not use, disclose, store, sell or disseminate any Cardholder Information except for purposes of authorizing, completing and settling Card transactions and resolving any Chargebacks, retrieval requests or similar issues involving Card transaction.

24. Supply of Equipment

24.1 We will sell to you, and you will buy from us Equipment identified in Equipment Documents as being sold to you (individually and collectively, the Purchased Equipment). We

will rent to you and you agree to accept and rent from us Equipment identified in Equipment Documents as being rented to you (individually and collectively, the Rental Equipment).

24.2 Any Equipment sold or rented to you is being sold or rented to you solely for business use and not for household or personal use.

24.3 Warranties, if any, for the Equipment or any related Software will be contained within the packaging and originate from the applicable third party provider or manufacturer (Vendor) not us.

24.4 YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT ANY EQUIPMENT AND/OR SOFTWARE YOU PURCHASE OR RENT FROM US MAY NOT BE COMPATIBLE WITH ANOTHER PROCESSOR'S SYSTEMS. WE DO NOT HAVE ANY OBLIGATION TO MAKE SUCH SOFTWARE AND/OR EQUIPMENT COMPATIBLE WITH ANY OTHER PROCESSING SYSTEMS. IF YOU ELECT TO USE ANOTHER PROCESSING SERVICE PROVIDER ON TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT, YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT YOU MAY NOT BE ABLE TO USE THE EQUIPMENT AND/OR SOFTWARE RENTED OR PURCHASED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

24.5 We will provide you supplies as requested by you. You shall pay the purchase price for such supplies, plus shipping and handling charges, including all applicable tax, prior to delivery of the supplies or upon invoice, as specified by us, or at our option, such amounts will be collected by us by debits or deductions pursuant to this Agreement.

24.6 We will deliver the Equipment to the site you designate. You are deemed to have accepted each piece of Equipment at the earlier of: (a) your actual acceptance after installation; (b) delivery to you if your site is not prepared and ready for installation; or (c) for Equipment that we have not agreed to install for you, seven (7) days after shipment of each such piece of Equipment. The rental period for each piece of Rental Equipment starts on the date the Equipment is deemed accepted and terminates at the scheduled termination date in the Equipment Documents.

24.7 You will prepare the installation site(s) for the Equipment, including the power supply circuits and phone lines, in conformance with the manufacturer's and our specifications and will make the site(s) available to us by the confirmed shipping date. Any alterations required for installation of Equipment will be done at your expense.

24.8 You shall cause the Equipment to be operated by competent and qualified personnel in accordance with any operating instructions furnished by us or the manufacturer. You shall not use the Equipment, or permit the Equipment to be used, in any manner or for any purpose for which the Equipment is not designed or reasonably suited.

24.9 You may not relocate, remove, disconnect, modify or in any way alter any Equipment without our prior consent.

24.10 You are responsible for safeguarding Equipment from (and shall immediately notify us of any) loss, damage, unauthorized use, misuse or theft.

24.11 You shall keep the Rental Equipment adequately insured against loss by fire, theft and all other hazards (comprehensive coverage). The loss, destruction, theft of or damage to the Rental Equipment does not relieve you of your obligation to pay the full purchase price or rent payable under this Agreement.

24.12 If Equipment is defective, you must immediately call the POS Help Desk. If necessary, we will assist you in obtaining replacement Equipment. If you fail to return any defective Equipment, you may be responsible for its replacement value and for any legal and/or collection costs incurred by the Equipment owner in connection with recovering Equipment.

24.13 Rented Equipment may not be subleased at any time and you must keep all Equipment free of any claims, liens and legal processes initiated by creditors.

24.14 Promptly upon termination of all applicable rental periods or promptly following any action by us following a Default, you shall deliver possession of all Rental Equipment (including all attachments and parts) to us at your cost in the same operating order, repair, condition and appearance that the Rental Equipment had at the time of its delivery to you, except for reasonable wear and tear. For each item of Rental Equipment not so returned 14 calendar days after (a) termination of the applicable rental period, or (b) any action by us following a Default, you agree to pay us the greater of \$250 or the fair market value of such item of Equipment if it were in the condition described above, as determined by us.

24.15 Except for Purchased Equipment that has been paid for in full, the Equipment shall remain our personal property and shall not under any circumstances be considered to be a fixture affixed to your real estate. You shall permit us to affix suitable labels or stencils to the Equipment indicating our ownership.

24.16 You shall return Equipment in accordance with the procedure set out in the Your Payments Acceptance Guide. Rental fees may be continued until Equipment is returned.

24.17 You hereby grant to us a security interest in (a) all Purchased Equipment and the related Software to secure payment of the purchase price; and (b) all Rental Equipment and the related Software to secure payment of the monthly payments and authorize us to file financing statements with respect to the Equipment and the Software in accordance with the Uniform Commercial Code, signed only by us or signed by us as your attorney-in-fact.

24.18 You agree that in order to access any Wireless Services, you must use wireless POS Terminals and accessories approved for use with the Wireless Services by us in our sole discretion (Wireless Equipment).

24.19 You agree to obtain any and all licenses, permits or other authorizations required by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) or any other regulatory authority, if any, for the lawful operation of any Wireless Equipment used by you. You shall promptly provide us with all such information as we may reasonably request with respect to matters relating to the rules and regulations of the FCC.

25. Compliance with Laws

25.1 You shall comply fully with the requirements of all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations related to your use of Software, Equipment and each Service and provision and use of any Cardholder Information, customer information and other point of sale data in connection with the Services. You shall not use the Services for illegal purposes.

25.2 You are solely responsible for obtaining all required permits and monitoring legal developments applicable to the Services and the operation of your business, interpreting applicable laws and regulations, determining the requirements for compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, and maintaining an on-going compliance program.

25.3 NOTWITHSTANDING THE CAPABILITY OF CERTAIN SERVICES TO COLLECT AND STORE CUSTOMER INFORMATION AND TO ALLOW YOUR CUSTOMERS TO ELECT TO RECEIVE MARKETING MATERIALS FROM YOU, SOME STATES MAY LIMIT YOUR USE OF SUCH INFORMATION ONCE COLLECTED, EVEN IF THE CUSTOMER HAS PROVIDED HIS CONSENT, AND/OR YOUR DISCLOSURE OF SUCH INFORMATION TO THIRD PARTIES. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT (a) YOUR USE OF ANY CUSTOMER INFORMATION OBTAINED IN CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICES MAY BE SUBJECT TO LOCAL, STATE, AND/OR FEDERAL LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS, (b) YOU ARE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR KNOWING SUCH LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS, AND

(c) YOU WILL AT ALL TIMES STRICTLY COMPLY WITH ALL SUCH LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS.

26. Responsibilities

26.1 You agree to be fully responsible for and hold us, our Affiliates and third party service providers harmless from and against all losses, liabilities, damages and expenses arising from:

(a) any breach or misrepresentation by you under this Agreement; (b) your or your employees' or your agents' negligence or willful misconduct, in connection with Card transactions or otherwise arising from your provision of goods and services to Cardholders; (c) your use of the Services, including any Software or Equipment provided under this Agreement; (d) any third party indemnifications we are obligated to make as a result of your actions (including indemnification of any Card Organization or Issuer); (e) your use of any Cardholder Information or other customer information obtained in connection with your use of the Services; (f) the content or delivery of any marketing messages that you send or cause to be sent to any customer; or (g) any other persons authorized or unauthorized access and/or use of any Service, Software or Equipment, whether or not using your unique username, password, or other security features.

26.2 Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 10.3, we agree to agree to be fully responsible for and hold you harmless from and against all losses, liabilities, damages and expenses directly resulting from any breach or misrepresentation by us under this Agreement or directly arising out of our or our employees' gross negligence or willful misconduct in connection with this Agreement; provided that this obligation shall only apply to Bank in relation to the services provided by it hereunder.

27. Dispute Resolution

The parties agree to resolve disputes in accordance with this section.

27.1 Informal Resolution. In the event of any dispute or disagreement between the parties arising out of or relating to this Agreement (the "Dispute"), either party ("Notice Party") may provide written notice to the other party ("Receiving Party") in an attempt to informally resolve the Dispute, including a description of the issues ("Initial Notice"). If the parties' authorized representatives do not resolve the Dispute within ten (10) business days of delivery of the Initial Notice, then each party shall immediately refer the Dispute to an executive at the Vice President level. No proceedings for the resolution of such Dispute may begin until it has been elevated to the Vice President level, and the Vice President concludes, after a good faith effort to resolve the Dispute, that resolution through continued discussion is unlikely.

27.2 Litigation. Any Dispute not resolved within sixty (60) calendar days after a good faith effort to resolve the Dispute informally pursuant to Section 27.1 may be submitted to litigation. The parties agree that any litigation involving any Claim, regardless of whether the Claim is in contract, tort (including negligence), or otherwise or is legal or equitable in nature, that arises out of this Agreement that relates to the Services or the subject matter of this Agreement be brought exclusively in any appropriate state or federal court located in the State in which you are located.

27.4 Choice of Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State in which you are located (without regards to its choice of law provisions). The exclusive venue for any actions or claims arising under or related to this Agreement shall be in the appropriate state or federal court located in the State in which you are located.

27.5 Nothing in this Agreement will abrogate the defense of sovereign or governmental immunity if otherwise available to you.

28. Notices

28.1 All notices and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement (other than those involving normal operational matters relating to the processing of Card transactions) shall be in writing and sent:

a) if to you, to your email address or postal address appearing on the Application;

 b) if to Processor, to its address appearing on the confirmation page, with a copy to Attention: General Counsel's Office, 3975 N.W. 120th Avenue, Coral Springs, FL 33065; and

c) if to Bank, to the address appearing on the confirmation page.

28.2 Notices shall be effective when actually received or, if sent by courier, when delivered. Notices sent to your last known e-mail address or postal address, as indicated in our records, shall constitute effective notice to you under this Agreement.

28.3 You must give us 30 days prior notice of any change to your address. Failure to provide us with a valid address may result in the termination of this Agreement.

28.4 Notwithstanding the above, all bankruptcy, credit reporting or collection related notices must be sent to the following address: Merchant Services Department, P.O. Box 675799 Marietta, GA 30006 Attn: Bankruptcy and Collection Notifications. 28.5 All notices must include your name(s) and merchant number(s).

29. Communications

29.1 You agree that we, our affiliates and our third party subcontractors and/or agents, may use, in addition to any live agent calls, an automatic telephone dialing system, an artificial or pre-recorded voice, or both, to contact you at the telephone number(s) you have provided, and/or may leave a detailed voice message if you are unable to be reached, even if the number provided is a cellular or wireless number or if you have previously registered on a Do Not Call list or requested not to be contacted for solicitation purposes.

29.2 You consent to receiving commercial electronic messages, including email messages, SMS and text messages, and telephone calls, from us, our Affiliates, and our third party subcontractors and/or agents.

30. Whole Agreement; Waiver; Severability

30.1 This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties with respect to its subject matter, and supersedes any previous agreements and understandings.

30.2 A party's waiver of a breach of any term or condition of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or another term or condition.

30.3 Except with respect to Section 27, the parties intend every provision of this Agreement to be severable, and, if any part of this Agreement is not enforceable, the remaining provisions shall remain valid and enforceable.

31. Amendment

31.1 We may modify this Agreement (including changing the fees or adding new fees) by 20 days written notice to you. Subject to Section 31.2, you may choose not to accept the change by terminating this Agreement by written notice within 30 days of our notice.

31.2 Notwithstanding Section 31.1, we may at any time modify this Agreement in accordance with Section 6.5 or to reflect changes in applicable law, the Card Organization Rules or security procedures and your right of termination shall not arise in such circumstances.

32. Third Party Beneficiaries

32.1 Our Affiliates and any Persons we use in providing the Services are third party beneficiaries of this Agreement and each of them may enforce its provisions as if they are a party to it. The rights of the parties to rescind or agree to any variations, waiver or settlement under this Agreement are not subject to the consent of any Person. 32.2 Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, a person who is not a party to this Agreement shall have no rights or remedies under this Agreement.

33. 6050W of the Internal Revenue Code

33.1 Under Section 6050W of the Internal Revenue Code, you will receive a Form 1099- K reporting the gross dollar amount of card transactions processed through your merchant account with us in each year.

33.2 Amounts reportable under Section 6050W are subject to backup withholding requirements. We will be required to perform backup withholding by deducting and withholding income tax from reportable transactions if (a) you fail to provide your taxpayer identification number (TIN) to us, or (b) if the IRS notifies us that the TIN (when matched with the name) provided by you is incorrect. Accordingly, to avoid backup withholding, it is very important that you provide us with the correct name and TIN that you use when filing your tax return that includes the transactions for your business.

34. Export Compliance

34.1 You agree not to export or re-export any Software or Equipment or any underlying information except in full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

34.2 None of the Software or Equipment or any underlying information may be down- loaded or otherwise exported or re-exported (a) to any country to which the United States has embargoed goods (or any national or resident thereof); (b) to anyone on the United States Treasury Department's list of Specially Designated Nationals or the United States Commerce Department's Table of Deny Orders; or (c) in any manner not in full compliance with the requirements of the United States Bureau of Industry and Security and all applicable Export Administration Regulations.

34.3 If you have rightfully obtained Software or Equipment or any underlying information outside of the United States, you agree not to re-export the same except as permitted by the laws and regulations of the United States and the laws and regulations of the jurisdiction in which you obtained it. You warrant that you are not located in, under the control of, or a national or resident of any such country or on any such list.

35. No Investment Advice

35.1 We do not provide any business, investment or financial advice and are not advocating any business decision or the sale or purchase of any real property, stocks, bonds, or securities.

35.2 We expressly state, and you hereby acknowledge, that any information services are provided solely for informational purposes and are not to be used as a substitute for independent financial investment advice nor are they intended to be relied upon by any person or entity, including you or your customers for the purposes of investment or other financial decisions.

36. Interpretation; Definitions

36.1 The headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not in any way affect the meaning or construction of any provision of this Agreement. References in this Agreement to include, including, or in particular shall not be given a restrictive meaning and shall be interpreted without limitation. Reference to any legislation is to such legislation as amended or supplemented in the future.

36.2 Certain terms used in this Agreement are defined below:

Affiliate: a Person that, directly or indirectly, (i) owns or controls a party to this Agreement or (ii) is under common ownership or control with a party to this Agreement.

Anticipated Interchange and Program Pricing Level: your initial anticipated Card Organization interchange and program pricing rates.

Application: the application for Services executed by you.

Authorization: approval by, or on behalf of, the Issuer to validate a transaction. An Authorization indicates only that the Issuer has confirmed there is sufficient availability of funds on the Cardholder's account at the time the Authorization is requested.

Authorization and Capture: the communication of instructions from your POS or other systems to our computer systems, whether the communications are for authorization requests or any other capture of information.

Card: See either Credit Card or Debit Card.

Cardholder: the Person whose name is embossed on a Card and any authorized user of such Card, also referred to as a Card Member by American Express.

Cardholder Information: the data contained on a Card, or otherwise provided to you, that is required by the Card Organization or us in order to process, approve and/or settle a Card transaction, including the names, addresses and Card account numbers of Cardholders.

Card Organization: any entity formed to administer and promote Cards, including Mastercard Worldwide (Mastercard), Visa U.S.A., Inc. (Visa), DFS Services LLC (Discover Network), PayPal, Inc. (PayPal), American Express Travel Related Services Company, Inc. (American Express) and any applicable debit networks. Card Organization Rules: the rules, regulations, releases, interpretations and other requirements (whether contractual or otherwise) imposed or adopted by any Card Organization and related authorities, including those of the PCI Security Standards Council, LLC and the National Automated Clearing House Association (including, with respect to EBTs, the Quest Operating Rules).

Chargeback: a Card transaction (or disputed portion) that is returned to us by the Issuer. You are responsible for payment to us for all Chargebacks.

Clover: Clover Network, Inc.

Clover Service: the website associated with the Clover Service, the object code version of Clover software applications (whether owned or licensed by Clover) resident on a Device at the time we provide you with the Device and the object code version of the software that enables the applications resident on a Device at the time of provisioning, and any related updates (including software maintenance or bug fixes) that are designed to assist with the management of your business and enable payment processing at the point of sale, and any materials, documentation and derivative works released by us.

Credit Card: a card bearing a valid Mark of Visa, Mastercard, Discover Network, PayPal or American Express (or any other Card Organization specified by us in writing) and authorizing the Cardholder to buy goods or services on credit.

Credit Limit: the credit line set by the Issuer for the Cardholder's Credit Card account.

Data Security Event: any actual or suspected unauthorized or fraudulent access to (or use, disclosure, or alteration of) Transaction Data (including but not limited to Cardholder Information) whether consisting of a single event, a continuous course of events, or a series of related events.

Debit Card: a card bearing a valid Mark of Visa, Mastercard, Discover Network or American Express or any debit network that is used to access funds in a Cardholder's bank account or a prepaid account.

Device: a tablet, smartphone, or other mobile or fixed form factor identified by us as compatible with and capable of accessing and/or supporting a particular Service.

Discount Rate: a percentage rate or amount charged to a merchant for processing its qualifying daily Credit Card and Non-PIN Debit transactions, as set forth in the Application.

Dispute: any dispute, claim, or controversy related to or arising under any aspect of your relationship with us, whether directly with Processor and/or Bank, or indirectly with any other person or entity related to the relationship, and arising at any time during, before, or after that relationship.

EMV Upgrade Costs: the costs you agree to incur to upgrade payment acceptance and processing hardware and software to enable you to accept and process EMV-enabled Cards in a manner compliant with the PCI DSS.

Equipment: equipment rented to or purchased by you under this Agreement and any Equipment Documents.

Equipment Documents: documents setting out additional terms on which Equipment is rented to or purchased by you under this Agreement.

General Terms: these general terms and conditions on which the Services are provided, including any amendments or modifications.

Foreign Currency: a currency other than the Local Currency and supported by us for a particular service.

GeP Transaction: a card not present transaction between you and a Cardholder using a card type approved by us, in which you present the price for the product or service in a Foreign Currency in a card not present environment and the Cardholder authorizes (a) the price in a Foreign Currency to be submitted to a Card Organization for settlement, and (b) that the Cardholder's account will be charged for the price in the Foreign Currency.

GeP Service: the merchant pricing of goods and services in a Foreign Currency and the activity undertaken by us and/or a GeP Service Provider to authorize, process, and settle GeP Transactions.

Issuer: the financial institution or Card Organization that has issued a Card to a Person.

Local Currency: the currency associated with your place of domicile and approved by us.

Marks: names, logos, emblems, brands, service marks, trademarks, trade names, tag lines or other proprietary designations.

Merchant Account: shall mean an account set up for a merchant that requires a card processor, bank, merchant ID, terminal ID, merchant account number, or otherwise named unique merchant number. Multiple physical or virtual storefronts that process transactions under the same unique merchant number shall be deemed as one (1) Merchant Account.

Merchant Account Number: a number that numerically identifies each merchant location, outlet, or line of business to us for accounting and billing purposes. MID: merchant identification number.

Mitigation Service: a service provided to a Cardholder whose information is the subject of a Data Security Event, where the primary purpose of the service is to mitigate the effects of the Data Security Event, including identity theft education and assistance and credit monitoring.

Non-PIN Debit: a transaction using a Debit Card that is processed without the use of a PIN.

Non-Qualified Fee: the difference between the interchange or program pricing associated with the Anticipated Interchange and Program Pricing Level and the interchange or program pricing associated with the more costly interchange or program pricing level at which the transaction actually processed.

Non-Qualified Surcharge: a surcharge applied to any transaction that fails to qualify for the Anticipated Interchange and Program Pricing Level and is therefore downgraded to a more costly interchange or program pricing level. The Non-Qualified Surcharge (the amount of which is set out on the Fee Schedule) is in addition to the Non-Qualified Fee, which is also your responsibility.

PCI: Payment Card Industry.

PCI DSS: Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard, as amended from time to time.

Person: an individual, corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, trust, association or any other legally recognized entity or organization, other than you or us.

PIN: a Personal Identification Number entered by the Cardholder to submit a PIN Debit transaction.

PIN Debit: a transaction using a Debit Card where a Cardholder-enters a PIN via a PIN Pad.

Reserve: funds that are otherwise payable to you which we hold to secure your obligations under this Agreement, pursuant to Section 17 of this Agreement. The Reserve may also refer to other collateral that you may provide to us to secure such obligations. References to "Reserve Account" shall refer to our records and accounting of such funds or other collateral.

Security Event Expenses: means: (a) any obligation that you have to us arising from a Data Security Event, including EMV Upgrade Costs; (b) the cost of a security assessment conducted by a qualified security assessor approved by a Card Organization or PCI to determine the cause and extent of a Data Security Event; and (c) any reasonable fees or expenses incurred by us, or by you with our prior written consent, for any Mitigation Service specifically approved by us in writing but only if the Mitigation Service is provided within one (1) year after discovery of the relevant Data Security Event.

Servicers: Bank and Processor collectively. The words "we," "us" and "our" refer to Servicers, unless otherwise indicated.

Services: the activities undertaken by us to authorize, process and settle Card transactions undertaken by Cardholders at your location(s), and all other services provided by us under this Agreement.

Settlement Account: an account or account(s) at a financial institution designated by you as the account to be debited and credited by us for Card transactions, fees, Chargebacks and other amounts due under this Agreement or in connection with this Agreement.

Software: all software, computer programs, related documentation, technology, know-how and processes embodied in the Equipment i.e. firmware or otherwise provided to you under this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, the term Software shall not include any third party software available as part of a Third Party Service or which may be obtained by you separately from the Services (e.g. any applications downloaded by you through an application marketplace).

Third Party Services: services, products, promotions or applications provided by someone other than us.

Transaction Data: data collected as part of performing Services for you.

Transaction Rate: the then-current Foreign Currency exchange rate used by the Card Organizations or their designee to convert the net funding amount into the Local Currency.

Wireless Networks: certain cellular telephone and data networks to which we have access though Wireless Vendors

Wireless Services: wireless data communication services that use radio base stations and switching offered by Wireless Networks in order to allow you to capture and transmit to us certain wireless Card Authorization transactions or to transmit other communications to our system.

Wireless Software: wireless software (including any documentation relating to or describing the wireless software) downloaded by you or your designee from our systems onto the Wireless Equipment.

Wireless Vendors: one or more third party vendors selected by us in our sole discretion through whom we have acquired the right to resell Wireless Services. You, Your: the merchant signing this Agreement.

Your Payments Acceptance Guide: the information prepared by us, containing operational procedures, instructions and other rules and requirements relating to Card transactions.

Amendment to Merchant Processing Agreement

1	Your	Business	Informa	tion	
	Merchant Identification #(s): Your Legal Name: First/Last Contact Name:		tification	#(s):	
			ne:	City of Tybee Island	
			act Name		
	Title:				
	Busine	ess Phone	e:		
2	What	thic Am	endment	t Doos	
L	2.1	This An	nendmen	t amends the Program Terms and Conditions (the Program Guide) to your merchant ement by:	
		(1)	Adding the following Section 28.8 to the end of Section 28 (Confidentiality):		
			28.8	We acknowledge that you may be subject to public records laws for the State in which you are located and any non-exempt public records, which may include our confidential information, are subject to inspection and copying upon request by the public. If a Public Records request is made for our confidential information, you will provide us 10 days' prior notice of your intent to disclose the records so that we may seek a protective order or take other court action. If no such action is filed, you may disclose the records.	
		(2)	Deleting	g the first sentence of Section 29.1 and replacing it with the following:	
			29.1	Any transfer or assignment of this Agreement by you, without our prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld by us), by operation of law or otherwise, is voidable by us.	
		(3)	Deleting	g the last paragraph of Section 29.3 and replacing it with the following:	
				Processor may not assign or transfer this Agreement to any other Person without your prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld by you). Subject to Card Organization Rules, Bank may assign or transfer this Agreement and its rights, duties and obligations hereunder, in whole or in part, to any Person, whether in connection with a change in sponsorship, as set forth in the preceding paragraph, or otherwise, without notice to you or your consent.	
		(4) Deleting Sect		g Section 31.4.1 and replacing it with the following:	
			31.4.1	Any funds pertaining to the Card transactions contemplated by this Agreement now or hereafter in our possession may be commingled with other funds of ours, or, in the case of any funds held pursuant to the foregoing paragraphs, with any other funds of other customers of ours. In addition to any rights now or hereafter granted under applicable law and not by way of limitation of any such rights, we are hereby authorized by you at any time and from time to time, without notice or demand to you or to any other Person (any such notice and demand being hereby expressly waived), to set off, recoup and to appropriate and to apply any and all such funds against and on account of your obligations to us and our respective Affiliates under this Agreement and any other agreement with us our respective Affiliates for any	

related equipment or related services (including any check services), whether such obligations are liquidated, unliquidated, fixed, contingent, matured or unmatured.

- (5) Deleting *Section 31.4.3* in its entirety;
- (6) Deleting the phrase "agree to indemnify and hold us and the Card Organizations harmless from and against" from *Section 33.1* and replacing it with the phrase "are fully responsible for";
- (7) Deleting Sections 45.1 and 45.2 and replacing those Sections with the following:
 - 45.1 Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State in which you are located (without regards to its choice of law provisions).
 - 45.2 Venue. The exclusive venue for any actions or claims arising under or related to this Agreement shall be in the appropriate state or federal court located in the State in which you are located.
- (8) Deleting Section 45.3 in its entirety.
- 2.2 Nothing in this Amendment or the Program Guide will abrogate the defense of sovereign or governmental immunity if otherwise available to you.

3 Effective Date

This Amendment becomes effective as of the effective date of your Merchant Processing Agreement.

4 Amendment Approval

By signing below, you acknowledge that:

- You have read and understand this Amendment;
- You agree to comply with this Amendment; and
- You understand that if you sign this Amendment using an electronic signature process, the resulting signature has the same legal effect as if you had signed it by hand.

The individual signing below represents that s/he is authorized to sign this Amendment on behalf of the entity identified in *Section 1*.

	CardConnect, LLC
Merchant	
By:	By:
Signature	Signature
Name:	Name:
Print or Type	Print or Type
Title:	Title:
Date:	

Amendment to ACH Processing Services Application & Agreement

1	Your Business Information	
	Merchant Identification #(s)	
	Your Legal Name:	City of Tybee Island
	First/Last Contact Name:	
	Title:	
	Business Phone:	

2 What this Amendment Does

- 2.1 This Amendment amends the Amendment to ACH Processing Services Application & Agreement (the **ACH Agreement**) to your ACH processing agreement by:
 - (1) Deleting the first sentence of Section 8 (i) and replacing it with the following:
 - (i) **Assignment.** Any transfer or assignment of this Agreement by you, without our prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld by us), by operation of law or otherwise, is voidable by us
 - (2) Deleting the phrase "shall indemnify and protect, defend, and hold harmless" from Section 3(f) and replacing it with the phrase "is fully responsible for";
 - (3) Deleting Sections 8(a) and replacing it with the following:
 - (a) **Choice of Law**. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State in which you are located (without regards to its choice of law provisions).
 - (4) Deleting Section 8(c) in its entirety.
- 2.2 Nothing in this Amendment or the ACH Processing Services Application will abrogate the defense of sovereign or governmental immunity if otherwise available to you.

3 Effective Date

This Amendment becomes effective as of the effective date of your ACH Processing agreement.

Amendment to ACH Processing Services Application & Agreement

4 Amendment Approval

By signing below, you acknowledge that:

- You have read and understand this Amendment;
- You agree to comply with this Amendment; and
- You understand that if you sign this Amendment using an electronic signature process, the resulting signature has the same legal effect as if you had signed it by hand.

The individual signing below represents that s/he is authorized to sign this Amendment on behalf of the entity identified in Section 1.

	CardConnect, LLC
Merchant	
By:	By:
Signature	Signature
Name:	Name:
Print or Type	Print or Type
Title:	Title:
Date:	

Jan LeViner

From:	Edward M. Hughes <bhughes@ellispainter.com></bhughes@ellispainter.com>
Sent:	Friday, August 16, 2024 10:46 AM
То:	Jan LeViner
Subject:	FW: Amendments////
Attachments:	PG - All Government and Higher Education (City of Tybee Island).docx

The below is in digital format that should be part of the packet. I will have an email I hope you and council, Michelle and Cassidi on this either later today or on Monday.

Thanks. I also need to send or see if Cassidi has the application form that should also be included.

Bubba

From: Neal, Lauren (US - Kansas) <lauren.neal@Fiserv.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 14, 2024 4:44 PM
To: Tracy O'Connell <toconnell@ellispainter.com>; Cassidi Kendrick <cassidi.kendrick@cityoftybee.gov>; Michelle
Owens <Michelle.owens@cityoftybee.gov>
Cc: Edward M. Hughes <bhughes@ellispainter.com>
Subject: RE: Amendments

Hi Team,

Again, I apologize for the delay on this in waiting on our legal team. The attached guide is condensed and is our bare bones of everything we can remove from the original guide – there are not any additional changes able to be made.

She is checking on the additional signature and will get back to me asap.

Lauren Neal

Mid-Market Sales Partner Solutions Office: 785.379.8628

Fiserv

World's Most Admired Companies [™] 2023 | *Fortune*[®] Magazine Fiserv | Join Our Team | Twitter | LinkedIn | Facebook

©2023 Fiserv Inc, or its affiliates. Fiserv is a registered trademark of Fiserv Inc. <u>Privacy Notice</u> From Fortune, ©2023 Fortune Media IP Limited. All rights reserved, Used under license,

From: Tracy O'Connell <<u>toconnell@ellispainter.com</u>> Sent: Tuesday, August 13, 2024 5:10 PM To: Neal, Lauren (US - Kansas) <<u>lauren.neal@Fiserv.com</u>>; Cassidi Kendrick <<u>cassidi.kendrick@cityoftybee.gov</u>>; Michelle Owens <<u>Michelle.owens@cityoftybee.gov</u>> Cc: Edward M. Hughes <<u>bhughes@ellispainter.com</u>> Subject: RE: Amendments

EXTERNAL MESSAGE - Think Before You Click

Hi Lauren – Just checking in. Please let us know. Our agenda deadline is Thursday at 5. I am out of town the rest of the week so copying my partner Bubba Hughes who can help address any questions/issues. Thanks



Tracy O'Connell Ellis Painter 7 East Congress Street, 2nd Floor • Post Office Box 9946 (31412) Savannah , Georgia 31401 Phone: (912) 233-9700 • Fax: (912) 233-2281 Direct: (912) 231-6734 • Cell: (912) 695-8721 toconnell@ellispainter.com • Website: www.ellispainter.com

From: Tracy O'Connell Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2024 3:35 PM To: Neal, Lauren (US - Kansas) <<u>lauren.neal@Fiserv.com</u>>; Cassidi Kendrick <<u>cassidi.kendrick@cityoftybee.gov</u>>; Michelle Owens <<u>Michelle.owens@cityoftybee.gov</u>> Subject: RE: Amendments

Hi Lauren – Thanks for reaching out. I apologize I think I got a little confused on the documents. I want to make sure I have the universe of documents for this transaction. Is the contract made up of the three attached: PG Gov City of Tybee; City of Tybee CCN Gov ACH Processing Ammt and City of Tybee CCN Government MPA Amendment? The way I read these I think I am missing some but please confirm.

Unfortunately, the reason why we use the Contract Addendum we previously sent (and attached again) is that sometimes these form agreements have boilerplate language that does not comport with Georgia law. I would again ask that you all allow the attached to be included as it will short circuit some of my comments below.

Merchant Services Program Terms and Conditions (Program Guide) I believe this is the main agreement but please confirm.

Confirmation Page - I don't see the "Your Payments Acceptance Guide" can you please provide? There is a blank where it says it can be accessed but no information. Also, that is the same for the American Express Guide. On the Visa Guide, I went on the internet and found one but please confirm it is the one "Visa Core Rules and Visa Products and Service Rules" dated April 13, 2024 (942 pages). Same for the Mastercard Guide which on the internet is "Mastercard Rules" dated June 7, 2022 (438 pages).

There is also a refence to "Card Organization" Thresholds - what are those?

Finally, on this page there is a reference to "General Terms and Conditions" and a Version listed but not attached. Can you please let me know what that is?

- 6.2 Do you have the Fee Schedule?
- 6.10 TransArmor Solution can you please explain this?
- 6.11 What is the monthly fee for Non-Receipt of PCI Validation fee?
- 7.3 This references a Pricing Schedule can we please have a copy of that?

16.2 This provides for a three year term. We cannot agree to any term over 12 months but can agree to automatic renewals. This is covered in our addendum which complies with the state law.

16.11(a) We need to remove this language that we will hold harmless. Under the law, we cannot indemnify anyone which is covered in our Addendum.

- 17.2 Can you please let me know what the Reserve is?
- 26.1 This paragraph also mentions holding harmless and would need to be removed.

Amendment to ACH Processing Services Application and Agreement I don't believe we have this ACH Agreement? Can you please forward?

Amendment to Merchant Processing Agreement

I don't believe we have this. It also says inn 2.1 it is amending the "Program Guide" but the paragraphs listed in this Amendment don't match the above attached Program Guide – maybe we need a different version?

Please let us know and if there is someone I need to speak with I am happy to do so. Thanks for your help.



Tracy O'Connell Ellis Painter 7 East Congress Street, 2nd Floor • Post Office Box 9946 (31412) Savannah , Georgia 31401 Phone: (912) 233-9700 • Fax: (912) 233-2281 Direct: (912) 231-6734 • Cell: (912) 695-8721 toconnell@ellispainter.com • Website: www.ellispainter.com

From: Neal, Lauren (US - Kansas) <<u>lauren.neal@Fiserv.com</u>> Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2024 1:55 PM To: Tracy O'Connell <<u>toconnell@ellispainter.com</u>>; Cassidi Kendrick <<u>cassidi.kendrick@cityoftybee.gov</u>>; Michelle Owens <<u>Michelle.owens@cityoftybee.gov</u>> Subject: Amendments

Please see attached on what we are able to do - hopefully this works for you!

Lauren Neal Mid-Market Sales Partner Solutions Office: 785.379.8628

Fiserv

World's Most Admired Companies [™] 2023 | Fortune[®] Magazine Fiserv | Join Our Team | Twitter | LinkedIn | Facebook

©2023 Fiserv Inc. or its affiliates, Fiserv is a registered trademark of Fiserv Inc. <u>Privacy Notice</u> From Fortune. ©2023 Fortune Media IP Limited, All rights reserved, Used under license.

File Attachments for Item:

6. Michelle Owens: 912 Mortar Avenue: Buttimer request for STR Permit



Ordinance No. 2023-15 A/Ability to Apply for STR Permit after CO Issuance Eligibility Worksheet

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Name____Brad and Jillian Buttimer/ Seago Mortar LLC____

Applicant Address ____ 912 Mortar Avenue _____

Applicant Email____bradbuttimer@gmail.com_____

Applicant Phone_____912-500-9402______

PROPERTY INFORMATION

☑ New Construction

Extensive Renovation of existing property

*If extensive renovation, does project meet definition of substantial improvement under the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance (Article 8)?

YES NO

Building Permit was in place prior to August 26, 2021 Date of Building Permit___05-27-21_____

Property was not eligible for Certificate of Occupancy or other official notification of construction completion at time of moratorium on **August 26, 2021**

Applicant can demonstrate with a preponderance of evidence their intent to use property as STR (records, documents, contracts with agents, market place innkeepers, other evidence applicant contends serves as proof).

Type of proof supplied: IRS Form \$5-4_Application for EIN Number (No. 85-332-4000, dated 10-06-2020

Application for STR permit made within six (6) months of issuance of Certificate of Occupancy

 CO Issuance:_02-15-22_____
 Submission Deadline:_08-15-22_____

 STR Permit Application Date:
 _01-23-2024______

Eligible for STR Permit? YES NO Date of Council Decision_____

Signature of staff person completing this form Michelle Queno Date 7-30-24



CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND BUSINESS LICENSE APPLICATION

Date	
New	
Renewal	
License #	

Business Name Seage	Mortar, LLC	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Location 912 Mor	tar Avenue		
Mailing Address P.O. Box	2374 Typee Island.	GA 31328	
Phone (404) 213-211	2 Email Seagomor	tar@gmail.com	N
Federal ID # 85-332400		24000	
Business Type (circle one) :	Sole Proprietor Partnership Corpo	ration (LLC) Non-Profit	Other:
Name	s and Home Addresses of Owners, Parts	ners or Corporate Officers	
Names	Home Address	City, State, Zip	Title
Jillian Buttimer	III Holloorn Lane	Savannah, GA314	10 managing membe
Brad Buttimer	111 Holborn Lane	Savannah, GA 3141	0 member
Jessica knones	1209 Sweet briar Ave	Nashville, TN 3721. Nashville, TN 3721	2 managing memb
	1209 Sweet briar Ave		

Has this business or anyone connected with this business been cited or charged with any violation of Georgia Law, Federal Law, Local Ordinance, or any Rule or Regulation of the State Revenue Commissioner or any Rule or Regulation of the City or County within the past 12 months? (circle one) YES or NO(If YES, include details)

Any business that requires state licensing must present state license when applying. It is the applicant's responsibility to ensure zoning conformance. If there is a question as to whether the location is zoned correctly please contact the Zoning Office at 912-472-5033. Application for alcohol license requires a separate form, approval and fingerprinting if a new alcohol license. Application for entertainment requires annual review and approval.

ALL COMMERCIAL BUSINESSES MUST HAVE A FIRE MARSHAL INSPECTION. CALL 912 201-4300:

Fire Prevention: Inspection Report from Fire Marshal/County Inspector IN/A

NEW APPLICATIONS FOR FOOD SERVICE OR TOURIST ACCOMMODATIONS (I.E. HOTEL/MOTEL, BED & BREAKFAST) REQUIRE:

🛄 Inspection Report from Georgia Department Of Public Health/Department of Agriculture 🛄 N/A

403 Butler Avenue, P.O. Box 2749, T (912) 472-5072 FA	
Received by	Date
Printed Name Jillian Buttimer	·
Applicant Signature Sullian Buttings	Date_01/23/2024

www.cityoftybee.org



Affidavit Verifying Status for City Public Benefit Application

By executing this affidavit under oath, as an applicant for a City of Tybee Island, Georgia, Business License or Occupation Tax Certificate, Alcohol License, Taxi Permit, Contract, or other public benefit as referenced in O.C.G.A. Section 50-36-1, the undersigned applicant representing Slapping Mortar, Lloc (name of business), verifies one of the following with respect to my application for publicbenefit:

)	I am a United States citizen.
<u>R</u>	(document example: Driver's license, ES Pausport, ES Millions Card. etc.)
)	I am a legal permanent resident of the United States (document example: I-551 Permanent Resident Card, Certificate of Citizenship, etc.)

2) I am a qualified alien or non-immigrant under the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act with an alien number issued by the Department of Homeland Security or other federal immigration agency. My alien number issued by the Department of Homeland Security or other federal immigration agency is:

(document example: Temporary Resident Card; Employment Authorization Card, etc.)

- The undersigned applicant also hereby verifies that he or she is 18 years of age or older and has provided at least one secure and verifiable document, as required by O.C.G.A. § 50-36-1-(e), with this affidavit.

The secure and verifiable document provided with this affidavit can best be classified as: _____

In making the above representation under oath, I understand that any person who knowingly and willfully makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation in an affidavit shall be guilty of a violation of O.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, and face criminal penalties as allowed by such criminal statute.

Printed Name

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN BEFORE ME ON THIS THE 23 DAY OF TANUARY, 20 24
Notary Public SMUY OF
My Commission Expires: 921226

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS AFFID. (11 AND SUBMIT A COPY OF THE IDENTIFICATION DOCUMENT (front and back) PRESENT IN PERSON AT 403 BUTLER AVE OR FAX TO 912-786-5832 OR E-MAIL TO: <u>SSHAVER@CITYOFTYBEE.ORG</u>. REFERENCE YOUR BUSINESS LICENSE NUMBER IN THE SUBJECT LINE OF YOUR E-MAIL. If fax or email this form, please have this form notarized prior to submitting it to The City of Tybee Island at <u>sshaver@cityoftybee.org</u> or 912 786-5832. The City of Tybee has a notary, if submitting in person.

Note: O.C.G.A. § 50-36-1(e)(2) requires that aliens under the federal Immigration and Nationality Act, Title 8 U.S.C., as amended, provide their alien registration number. Because legal permanent residents are included in the federal definition of "alien", legal permanent residents must also provide their alien registration number. Qualified aliens that do not have an alien registration number may supply another identifying number below:

403 Rutler Avenue P O Roy 7749 Typee Island Georgia 31378-7749

E-VERIFY AFFIDAVIT

For Employers with 10 or fewer employees Private Employer Exemption Affidavit Pursuant To O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6(d)

By executing this affidavit, the undersigned private employer verifies that it is exempt from compliance with O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6, stating affirmatively that the individual, firm, or corporation employs ten (10) or fewer employees and is not required to register with and/or utilize the federal work authorization program commonly known as E-Verify, or any subsequent replacement program, in accordance with the applicable provisions and deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6.

I hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

January 23, 2024 in Savannah, (city), GA (state). Executed on Buttimer Name of Exempt Private Employer Printed Kutting Signature of Exempt Private Employer or Authorized Officer or Agent Jillian Buttimer - Managing Member Printed Name and Title of Person Executing Affidavit

For Employers with more than 10 employees Private Employer Affidavit of Compliance Pursuant To O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6(d)

By executing this affidavit, the undersigned private employer verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6, stating affirmatively that the individual, firm or corporation has registered with and utilizes the federal work authorization program commonly known as E-Verify, or any subsequent replacement program, in accordance with the applicable provisions and deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6. Furthermore, the undersigned private employer hereby attests that its federal work authorization user identification number and date of authorization are as follows:

Federal Work Authorization User Identification Number (Four-Six numbers)

Date of Authorization

Name of Private Employer

I hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

(city), (state). _____, 201___in _____ Executed on

Signature of Authorized Officer or Agent

Printed Name and Title of Authorized Officer or Agent

	- AGAN	A Street
2	M.	· ·
	ARY	·
1	مريح	
1	50	
- Y.	: DIIBY	S.F.
4		2.21

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN BEFOR 20 24 DAY OF . NOTARY PUBLIC

If fax or email this form, pleasenting the form notary, if submitting in person. A 71-1AM red prior to submitting it to The City of Tybee Island at <u>sshaver@cityoftybee.org</u> or 912 786-5832. The City of Tybee has a

403 Butler Avenue P.O. Box 2749 Typee Island, Georgia 31328-2749



CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND

CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

DATE COMPLETED: 02/15/2022

This Certificate issued pursuant to the requirements of the Standard Building Code Certifying that at the time of issuance this structure was in compliance with the various ordinances of the Jurisdiction regulating building construction or use.

PERMIT #: 210324

CONTACT NAME: CFK PROPERTIES

CONTACT ADDRESS: 912 MORTAR AVE TYBEE ISLAND GA 31328

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 912 MORTAR AV

B **APPROVED BY:**

P.O. Box 2749 - 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328 (912) 786-4573 - FAX (912) 786-5737 www.cityoftybee.org IRS DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE CINCINNATI OH 45999-0023

Date of this notice: 10-06-2020

Employer Identification Number: 85-3324000

Form: SS-4

Number of this notice: CP 575 B

For assistance you may call us at: 1-800-829-4933

IF YOU WRITE, ATTACH THE STUB AT THE END OF THIS NOTICE.

WE ASSIGNED YOU AN EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER

Thank you for applying for an Employer Identification Number (EIN). We assigned you EIN 85-3324000. This EIN will identify you, your business accounts, tax returns, and documents, even if you have no employees. Please keep this notice in your permanent records.

When filing tax documents, payments, and related correspondence, it is very important that you use your EIN and complete name and address exactly as shown above. Any variation may cause a delay in processing, result in incorrect information in your account, or even cause you to be assigned more than one EIN. If the information is not correct as shown above, please make the correction using the attached tear off stub and return it to us.

Based on the information received from you or your representative, you must file the following form(s) by the date(s) shown.

Form 1065

03/15/2021

If you have questions about the form(s) or the due date(s) shown, you can call us at the phone number or write to us at the address shown at the top of this notice. If you need help in determining your annual accounting period (tax year), see Publication 538, Accounting Periods and Methods.

We assigned you a tax classification based on information obtained from you or your representative. It is not a legal determination of your tax classification, and is not binding on the IRS. If you want a legal determination of your tax classification, you may request a private letter ruling from the IRS under the guidelines in Revenue Procedure 2004-1, 2004-1 I.R.B. 1 (or superseding Revenue Procedure for the year at issue). Note: Certain tax classification elections can be requested by filing Form 8832, *Entity Classification*. See Form 8832 and its instructions for additional information.

A limited liability company (LLC) may file Form 8832, Entity Classification Election, and elect to be classified as an association taxable as a corporation. If the LLC is eligible to be treated as a corporation that meets certain tests and it will be electing S corporation status, it must timely file Form 2553, Election by a Small Business Corporation. The LLC will be treated as a corporation as of the effective date of the S corporation election and does not need to file Form 8832.

To obtain tax forms and publications, including those referenced in this notice, visit our Web site at www.irs.gov. If you do not have access to the Internet, call 1-800-829-3676 (TTY/TDD 1-800-829-4059) or visit your local IRS office.

SEAGO MORTAR LLC JEFFREY B KRONES MBR 1765 TYNE BLVD NASHVILLE, TN 37215

IMPORTANT REMINDERS:

- * Keep a copy of this notice in your permanent records. This notice is issued only one time and the IRS will not be able to generate a duplicate copy for you. You may give a copy of this document to anyone asking for proof of your EIN.
- * Use this EIN and your name exactly as they appear at the top of this notice on all your federal tax forms.
- * Refer to this EIN on your tax-related correspondence and documents.

If you have questions about your EIN, you can call us at the phone number or write to us at the address shown at the top of this notice. If you write, please tear off the stub at the bottom of this notice and send it along with your letter. If you do not need to write us, do not complete and return the stub.

Your name control associated with this EIN is SEAG. You will need to provide this information, along with your EIN, if you file your returns electronically.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Keep this part for your records. C

CP 575 B (Rev. 7-2007)

Return this part with any correspondence so we may identify your account. Please correct any errors in your name or address.

CP 575 B

99999999999

Your Telephone Num	ber Best Time to Call	DATE OF THIS NOTICE:	10-06-2020
() -		EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATI	ON NUMBER: 85-3324000
		FORM: SS-4	NOBOD

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE CINCINNATI OH 45999-0023 Indidididi SEAGO MORTAR LLC JEFFREY B KRONES MBR 1765 TYNE BLVD NASHVILLE, TN 37215



City of Tybee Island

Memorandum

To:	City of Tybee Island City Council Members
From:	Michelle Owens, Interim City Manager
Date:	August 22, 2024
Re:	Request for STR Permit Per Ordinance No. 2023-15A

Background

Ordinance No. 2023-15A sets the process property owners must follow in order to request a shortterm rental (STR) permit if they possessed a building permit at the time the city council enacted a moratorium on August 26, 2021, halting issuance of rental permits. The ordinance allows for persons holding valid building permits with the expectation of being able to obtain an STR permit to request a permit from the city council, provided they meet certain conditions detailed below:

- Building permit was for new construction or an extensive renovation
- Building permit was in place prior to the moratorium
- Property was not eligible for a Certificate of Occupancy (CO) or other official notification of construction completion at the time of the moratorium
- Property owner can demonstrate with a preponderance of evidence their intent to use property as an STR
- The application for permit is made within six(6) months of issuance of CO
- City staff investigates permit application and report to mayor and council
- Mayor and council make a determination following staff report

<u>Overview</u>

Brad and Jill Buttimer are seeking an STR permit for 912 Mortar Avenue. They obtained a building permit on May 27, 2021, prior to the August 26, 2021 moratorium. According to the Buttimers, this property was not eligible for a CO or any other official notification of construction completion at the time of the moratorium because the construction timeline was extended due to COVID-19 and building material shortages. Applicant submitted IRS paperwork for SeagoMortar LLC, the company created to operate the rental property. This paperwork serves as evidence they intended to operate the property as an STR. The property received a CO on Feb. 15, 2022. The Buttimers went to city hall several times in 2023 to inquire about an STR licenses, with the last time being December 2023. They applied for a business license for 912 Mortar on January 1, 2024. Per the ordinance, the STR application must be submitted within 6 months after the issuance of a CO, which in this case would have been August 15, 2022.

Recommended Next Steps:

Per the ordinance, the city council must decide on the issuance of an STR Permit for 912 Mortar Avenue.

Michelle Owens

From:	Jillian Buttimer <jillian.buttimer@gmail.com></jillian.buttimer@gmail.com>
Sent:	Thursday, July 18, 2024 10:33 PM
To:	Michelle Owens
Cc:	Sharon Shaver; Brad; seagomortar@gmail.com
Subject:	Re: 912 Mortar Avenue
Attachments:	LLC.pdf; Certificate of Occupancy.pdf

Hi Michelle,

I apologize for the delay on this. I've been trying to backtrack and find all of our communication regarding the attempt to seek this permit over the past couple of years. I have attached our paperwork for the LLC we created for the intent of establishing this property as an STVR. Our contract date with our builder was September 18, 2020. Our LLC (Seago Mortar, LLC) was established between that date and October 6, 2020. Our build was scheduled to be completed by May 31, 2021. Covid created a problem with building materials and delays, so we were not able to close on the property until February 2022. I know you can access the CO, but I have attached it here, as well.

During the time of the build, the STVR moratorium was put in place. This was the trial period-I believe it was 6 months-and it was then extended from there. As we were trying to figure out what we needed to do, we learned that our property should have been grandfathered in, as our build was well underway when the moratorium was put into place. We went to City Hall (in the temporary building) several times in 2023 and were told that the person who needed to assist us in obtaining a permit was not in the office during that time. The last time we went to City Hall (in the temporary building) was December 2023, and we were finally directed to reach out to Sharon Shaver, as we were told that we needed to obtain a business license through the City of Tybee prior to obtaining an STVR permit. We filled out the paperwork and submitted this info to Sharon. Upon receiving our business license application, Sharon called me and explained that the zone our property was located in may not be able to obtain an STVR permit; Sharon wanted us to make sure we would be approved for a permit before paying for a business license (which we really appreciated). She directed us to call George Shaw in January of 2024. My husband, Brad, spoke with George on the phone 2 times. He gave him our contract date, and George told him that he would need to take our case to the attorneys for approval to see if we could be grandfathered in, but he "didn't think it would be an issue". At this point, we're over a year into this process, and our neighbors, who began building after us, have received their STVR permit during this time. Nevertheless, we waited on a response from George, called him several times, and waited to hear back. Sharon had been very responsive and helpful throughout this process, so I reached back out to her again and that's when she informed me that George had left the city about a month prior. So, here we are. I hate to feel like we're back at square one; I'm happy to provide whatever you need to cross this finish line. Again, I have attached our paperwork showing when we established our LLC as proof of intent for this property to be an STVR. I have no idea why there are no records of our intent to obtain an STVR permit, but please let me know what other documentation you need.

I do apologize for the lengthy response, but I knew the timeline was important.

Thank you, Jillian Buttimer (404)213-2102

OWNERSHIP AND BLDG PERMIT PRIOR TO MORATORIUM INCLUDE EXTENSIVE RENOVATIONS

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-15A ENTITLED: AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO ABILITY TO APPLY AND OBTAIN FOR A SHORT-TERM RENTAL PERMIT FOR APPLICANTS HOLDING A BUILDING PERMIT FOR NEW CONSTRUCTION OR EXTENSIVE RENOVATIONS AT THE TIME OF ADOPTION OF THE MORATORIUM TO PROVIDE A DEFINITION OF "EXTENSIVE RENOVATIONS" AND TO PROVIDE FOR PROCEDURES FOR ADDRESSING REQUESTS FOR POSSIBLE RELIEF, TO REPEAL CONFLICTING OR INCONSISTENT ORDINANCES AND TO ESTABLISH AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Tybee Island, Georgia, and

WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is the Mayor and Council thereof; and

WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to adopt ordinances under its police and home rule powers; and

WHEREAS, Council adopted a moratorium resolution on August 26, 2021 which resolution prohibited the issuance of any new Short-Term Rental ("STR") permits; and

WHEREAS, such resolution was thereafter modified to only apply to properties in R-1, R-1-B and R-2 Zoning Districts; and

WHEREAS, at the time of adoption of the moratorium certain persons or entities had obtained building permits for either new construction or extensive renovations to existing properties which were to be ultimately used as STR properties; and WHEREAS, these persons or entities who obtained their building permits prior to the moratorium being entered and who had expectations of being able to obtain an STR permit under the rules and ordinances then in place; however, since the properties were under construction and/or improvements to the extent they were not eligible for certificate of occupancy or for other reasons were unable to apply for a STR permit; and

WHEREAS, an inequitable result could potentially occur if these persons were not permitted to apply for an STR permit and it is the intention of the Mayor and Council to address such possible result where circumstances warrant relief;

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby ordained by the governing authority of the City of Tybee Island that the Code of Ordinances will be amended so as to create a new code section so as to provide as follows:

SECTION 1

Certain Building Permit Holders Ability to Obtain STR Permit.

As of the time the moratorium resolution addressing short-term rentals was adopted on August 26, 2021, any person holding a valid building permit for construction or renovation of a property in R-1, R-1-B, or R-2 district intended to be used as a STR may apply for an STR permit. Such applicant must establish eligibility for an STR permit under all applicable codes and regulations and must submit their application for an STR permit within six months of the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy or other official notification that the construction and/or renovations have been completed and passed all applicable required inspections, or within six months of the adoption of this ordinance. In order to be considered for a permit, the applicant must show: 1) the building permit was in place prior to August 26, 2021; 2) the construction and/or renovation was such that no certificate of occupancy for the location could be secured and no certificate of occupancy in fact was possible due to the renovations; and, 3) the applicant demonstrates by a preponderance of the evidence that the intention was to use the property for a STR by way of records or documents including contracts with agents or Market Place Innkeepers for anticipated rentals intended upon completion of the repairs or construction, or any other evidence the applicant contends supports the intention to establish a STR at the location.

SECTION 2

In regard to applicants claiming "extensive renovations", extensive renovations shall mean improvements that cost in excess of fifty percent (50%) of the pre-renovation of the value of the structure (residence) to which the application applies. Therefor extensive renovations shall mean the same as a "substantial improvement" under the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance (Article 8) to the extent that such definition would be consistent with the purpose hereof. That is, in order for a renovation to allow an application for a Short-Term Rental permit, the renovation permit must have been issued prior to the August 26, 2021 moratorium and shall have included or ultimately included repairs, reconstruction, alteration or improvements to a structure taking place during a one-year period in which the structure before the start of the construction of the improvement. The market value of the structure should be the appraised value of the structure prior to the start of the initial repair or improvement.

SECTION 3

City staff will investigate any such application to determine the existence and nature of the building permit as compliance with the above requirements and report to the Mayor and Council thereon. The Mayor and Council shall make all determinations hereunder.

SECTION 4

If any section, subsection, clause, or provision of this ordinance shall be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect any other section, subsection, clause, provision or portion of this ordinance which is not invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 5

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed.

SECTION 6

This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council pursuant to the code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia.

This Ordinance shall become effective on 22 day of ADOPTED THIS _ _ A DAY OF _ ____, 2023. ine hilly Seriore MAYOR ATTEST: CLERK OF COUNCIL FIRST READING: 6/ SECOND READING: 4 ENACTED: 6/24

572-582 Ownership and Bldg Permit Prior to Moratorium Include Extensive Renovations 6-13-2023 572-582 Ownership and Bldg Permit Prior to Moratorium W-O Public Hearings Include Extensive Renovations 5-31-2023 572.582 Ownership and Bldg Permit Prior to Moratorium W-O Public Hearings 2/15/2023 572.582 Equitable Considerations – Building Permit Without Public Hearings 572.582 Equitable Considerations – Public Hearings 2/9/2023 572.582 Equitable Considerations – 1/4/2023